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Corporate Profile
NGB

The Group is a market leader in the distribution and marketing of
rechargeable battery packs for mobile phones in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) under its own brand name of “SCUD RTERR ”. The Group
has also further broadened its product range and developed compatible
rechargeable battery packs for other 3C products, including notebook
computers, digital cameras and other portable electronic devices in

order to enlarge the Group’s revenue sources and enhance its market
competitiveness.

The Group has been developing its brand name of “SCUD RTERE” since
1997. As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s own “SCUD RFEHR ” brand
products comprised approximately 2,800 models of rechargeable mobile
phone battery packs which are compatible with approximately 3,100
mobile phone models. During the year, the number of first tier distributors
of the Group has exceeded 360, at least over 180 are exclusive
distributors, with over 35,000 points of sales. Fundamentally, the first and
second tier cities in the PRC with high consumption power have been
covered and a stable and extensive sales network has been established.

The Group’s own brand business uses “SCUD RFEHR” as its sales brand
name and is well known in the PRC. Since the Group launched its “SCUD
FRERR” products, four major product series, namely “Business Series
RIS 2%, “Gold Series & fh &%) ”, “Standard Series 24 £71)” and
“Economy Series #%# Z 51|, have been developed to cater for the needs
of different consumers. In the past five years, the sales of the Group’s own
brand rechargeable battery packs grew significantly with approximately

25 million pieces sold in 2007, which is 6.6 times of the figures in 2003
(approximately 3.8 million pieces) and reflected rapid growth of the Group
as the brand has gained extensive popularity in the market. In addition, the
Group also engaged in original equipment manufacturing (OEM) business,
supplying original rechargeable battery for renowned mobile phone
manufacturers such as Lenovo, Huawei, ZTE, UT Starcom, Sangdfei,
Hisense, Haier and etc.

To further develop the Group’s market segments, the Group entered

into an agreement to acquire the principal operating assets of one of its
largest competitors “Chaolitong #7738 ” in December 2007. “Chaolitong
{873 " has strong retail networks in rural areas, second tier and third
tier cities and could complement the Group’s networks in first and
second tier cities. The Group believes that the different advantages

from the two brands will be beneficial for reducing the cost and market
competition risks in the Group’s rural market expansion and increasing
the productivity, lowering integrated costs and enhancing efficiency of the
Group. With the inclusion of “Chaolitong 8 /138 ” after the acquisition, the
Group’s points of sales will reach 50,000, forming an extensive network
with national market coverage.
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Financial Highlights
B IS 2

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 BE_ZZtLF+-HA=1+—HLEFE
(RMB million except where otherwise stated) (BRBEFTHEIN - LEBARKESIR)
2007 2006 % Change
—EELF —TTRFE HEH D

Total Production Capacity of Rechargeable 7% & it 48 44 E At

Battery Packs (million piece) (A& 48.0 40.0 20.0
Turnover ] 960.9 936.3 2.6
Profit from Operations il 183.0 183.4 0.2)
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders AREE=FEA A

of the Company FEAEF) 15.5 160.2 (90.3)
Total Assets BEHE 1,153.1 1,156.8 (0.3)
Capital Expenditure BARFE 121.5 38.5 215.6
EBITDA RETFLE - BB TER

BHAT 2 BT 40.3 198.0 (79.6)
Basic Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) FREARAF) (AREAL) 1.58 26.35 (94.0)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) &A% #EE 2 H (ARBEAL) 1.58 24.93 (93.7)
Current Ratio (Times) MENLLE (£F) 5.4 3.3 63.6
Quick Ratio (Times) RELL I (1) 4.6 3.0 53.3
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (%) B ARFRME S 2R 2 LR (%) 1.5 18.7 (17.2pts/ A0 %)
Cash Position WEMn 497.9 611.0 (18.5)
Proposed Final Dividend BRGRRE S (GBI

Per Share (HKD cents) 2.0 — N/A T~ A
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Chairman’s Statement

L1l

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company” and together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Business Review

The year 2007 brought both challenges and opportunities to the Group.
In May last year, a serious fire occurred in our production plant in Fuzhou
and destroyed a majority of the Group’s inventory and unavoidably
affected our production. However, with the solidarity between the
management and the staff, remedial works were quickly carried out.
Meanwhile, major distributors, OEM customers and suppliers which have
developed long-term cooperative relationship with the Group offered their
support and understanding, contributing to a quick and full resumption
of production and operation within half year. The Group was successful
in turning the loss to profit within the second half of 2007. | would like

to express my immense gratitude again to each colleague and business
partner.

Fang Jin Chairman

& FE
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHREE

In the face of challenges, the Group still focused on the expansion

of its own brand business. Last December, the Group entered into

an agreement to acquire the principal operating assets of Chaolitong
Electronics Company Limited (“Chaolitong &8 /138 ”), one of the

largest competitors in the industry, for a total consideration up to
RMB245,000,000. The Group believes that upon completion of the
acquisition, the Company is expected to benefit in terms of its expanded
sales network, production capacity increase, product variety increase and
R&D capability enhancement, so as to strengthen the leader position of
“SCUD FRERE " as the largest producer of mobile phone rechargeable
battery packs in the PRC market.

Results Performance

The fire in last year led to a loss of RMB125,257,000 incurred in the
results of Group for the first half of the year. However, after endeavour
and effective measures, the Group was successful in turning the loss into
profit in the second half of the year. As at 31 December 2007, the profit
attributable to equity holders for the year amounted to approximately
RMB15,513,000 and the earnings per share was RMB1.58 cents. Net
profit for the year included the loss due to the fire of approximately
RMB164,581,000 (net of insurance compensation).

With its market leader position in the sales and marketing of its own
“SCUD 7R =ERR " brand mobile phone rechargeable battery packs, the
Group will focus on strengthening its brand equity and the expansion

of sales network in the future. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
look for profitable opportunities of merger and acquisition to accelerate
its business growth. As the Chinese economy continues to develop,

the demand for 3C products will increase, leading to an increase in the
demand for rechargeable battery packs as an energy supply to those
devices. Leveraging on the diversified product mix of the Group, it will be
benefited from the opportunities in the 3C market.

Brand Equity

The Group’s business comprises two segments, namely own brand
business and OEM business. In addition to the OEM production of
mobile phone rechargeable batteries and chargers for major customers
such as Lenovo, Huawei, ZTE, UT Starcom, Sangfei, Hisense and Haier,
the Group recognizes the importance of brand equity and channel
development in the enhancement of its market competitiveness.
Accordingly, in recent years the Group has been actively expanding

its own brand business through the “SCUD FRFERE ” brand name and
strengthening its own sales network.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETREHRESE

In the 2007 financial year, the Group’s own brand business accounted
64.1% of the total turnover, a substantial increase from 25.8% in

2003. It is exciting that the “SCUD FRE R " brand name has received a
number of outstanding awards. In December last year, the “SCUD 7R
& ” brand’s Li-ion battery was awarded Certificate of Exemption from
Government Inspection (“ BIZK & 2 mn ”) by the General Administration
of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the People Republic
of China (“AQSIQ”). The Group is the first and only domestic producer
of Li-ion rechargeable battery that has been awarded such Certificate
of Exemption, proving that the products of the Group have passed the
stringent requirements on quality and safety set by relevant government
authorities. In a market of uneven quality of mobile phone rechargeable
batteries, the confirmation on the “SCUD FRERR " brand by the AQSIQ
further manifests the competitiveness of the Group’s products in the
aspects of quality, safety and brand value, and strengthens the confidence
of consumers in the “SCUD REER ” brand. Meanwhile, the Group was
awarded Certificate of National Laboratory Accreditation (* B2 B &
Z=#R A5 £ ") by China National Accreditation Services for Conformity
Assessment, proving that the standard of the Group’s rechargeable
battery products reaches national level.

In January 2008, the Chinese edition of Forbes Magazine announced the
“List of Potential Enterprises in the PRC 2008”. The Group was ranked
28th amongst the 200 enterprises on the list. The Group’s attainment of
such a high ranking by the magazine of international prestige within one
year after its listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong in December 2006 further proved the success of the operation and
brand strategy of the Group in driving its continuous fast growth. The
Group will continue to maximize its brand equity on the platform of its core
competitiveness.

The products of the Group are renowned in the domestic market and
have received a number of awards, including the award of “China Top
Brand” twice in 2004 and 2007 for “SCUD FRFEMR " brand’s Li-ion
batteries, the award of “China Famous Trademark” in 2006 for the “SCUD
FRERR” brand’ and accredited as one of “PRC’s 500 Most Valuable
Brands” by World Brand Lab for three consecutive years.
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHREE

Sales Network

The extensive sales network of the Group serves well as a complement
to its brand recognition, both constituting the core competitiveness

of the “SCUD FRFEHE " brand. The sales network of the Group mainly
comprises distributors and terminal points of sales, forming an extensive
coverage. As at 31 December 2007, the Group had more than 360 first
tier distributors (at least over 180 of which were exclusive distributors) and
more than 35,000 points of sale, basically covering first tier and second
tier cities with high consumption power. In 2007 the Group made effort
to explore points of sales in Guangdong, Hubei and Henan and attained
satisfactory performance.

While expanding the sales network, the Group has carried out
enhancement to its network since last year to build a unified and more
outstanding brand image. As at 31 December 2007, the renovation

of more than 2,000 display counters had been completed, further
strengthening the brand image of the Group.

Acquisition of “Chaolitong £ 1 i&”

While focusing on organic growth, the Group also actively sought
opportunities of merger and acquisition which could provide a synergy
with the business of the Group. Last December, the Group had entered
into an agreement to acquire the principal operating assets of “Chaolitong
HB 3B, one of the largest competitors in the industry, for a total
consideration up to RMB245,000,000. The Group believes that by virtue
of the different advantages of two brands, the acquisition can create
significant synergy amongst the following aspects:

— Expansion of Sales Network
“Chaolitong #2738 ” possesses a strong sales network, covering
second tier and third tier cities, towns and villages in the PRC,
which complements the insufficiency of the Group in such regions
and allows the two brands of “SCUD FRERR” and “Chaolitong it
7138” to permeate quickly into markets within minimum time and
costs, thus increasing the coverage of both brand names and their
market shares.
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Qhaj_rman’s Statement
FERES

-  Strengthen R&D and Enhance Product Variety - RERMRNERZSEM
The mobile phone models and functions are ever-changing, it BEERBEE RN AR &
is critical to launch latest models of mobile phone rechargeable EREAELTRREESEE RS
battery packs in short period of time. It is also one of the reasons B - ZREER - EHE [SCUDR
why “SCUD 7R R ” enjoys brand loyalty and leadership among ER] ZAEmEERERELEEHES
its competitors. After the completion of acquisition, the Group will HFHNERZZ— - WETKE  AEE
further integrate with the resources of research and development i — S ERA[B B INHEER - &
of “Chaolitong #8738 ” and implement division of labour in order to THIRE  BEEEREER F5
avoid duplication and waste of resources. The development and e REEHE AR IR EEM RN ETEIE
production of medium and high end series rechargeable batteries RERMABMAEE - BEm_AREE
with large sales volumes will be centralized in Fuzhou, while the A RF S ER[ E 0@  mAEE AR
development and production of low end series rechargeable EREEMEE  BHSAEEZER
batteries will be centralized in Shenzhen, together with “Chaolitong ZRMELIRKR  RMER ZLRSENBE
#8773 " brand products, in order to enhance the variety the B WHEPRAEERAECHEBE
products of the Group to cover more mobile phone models and to mEmE e
facilitate the exploration of other related products and markets by
the Group.

- Increase Production Capacity and Lower Cost - RAEERBEERA
Upon the completion of the acquisition, the market share of the BEZUW ST - AKRE 2 TISEE XK
Group will be substantially increased. In response to increase in BUKIEERS @ BEERERIE
demand for similar products, centralized production will facilitate - SREEBERIRAEERE - i
production efficiency. With the enhancement in capacity, the EEENEAEBRBAIZEESHEE
Group can enjoy higher bargaining power in price determination. It Be - TRETAEERFE R ZKARSE
is expected that the costs of production and raw materials will be VABRAR - fe T — 2P PR EA AR ke @l
lowered and hence the risk of rising costs will be further mitigated. % o

- Reduce Market Risk - RBRETSRE
As the “Chaolitong 8 /738 ” brand is one of the largest competitors MR #8738 ] MR [SCUDRERE]
of the “SCUD TR ” brand, the integration of the two largest M BERNFEHF 2 —  BBAEEM
producers of mobile phone rechargeable batteries packs in the FHBEZFABESEE AR EE AR
PRC not only diminishes competition within the industry, but also e MEgRETS ECRERTE
stabilize market prices of rechargeable battery packs and increase BREBTFE AR EEMAENTISER
the overall profitability of the Group. WIS E 2 BRI o
Upon completion of the acquisition, the points of sales of the Group WHETERk I8 » ASEEP BRI HENR
in the PRC will be increased from approximately 35,000 at the end & R =TT 519 35,000 {EIE N
of 2007 to approximately 50,000. Meanwhile, it is expected that F#950,000 & o FEF - AEBEIMFIA
the Group can also substantially increase its market share of mobile BIhPBRRESEE AT EEMENT
phone rechargeable battery packs in the PRC from approximately BEEER - HRBEEHESHRE TN
12% currently to approximately 19% and further strengthen its 12% KIEIRFAE4)10% @ #E—SEEH

market leader position among its competitors. EERFHTF -
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FEHREE

Prospects and Outlook

According to the “Statistics Report on the Development of the
Telecommunication Industry in the PRC in 2007” published by the
Ministry of Information Industry, mobile phone users in the PRC reached
approximately 540 million at the end of 2007, an increase of approximately
20% from approximately 460 million last year. The PRC continues to

be the largest mobile phone market in the world. Based on the total
population of 1.3 billion in the PRC, the percentage of mobile phone
users in the PRC is relatively low and vast room for expansion exists in
the market. In addition, the continuous improvement in the multi-media
functions of mobile phones increased power consumption and demand
for spare rechargeable batteries substantially.

The telecommunication fees in 2007 fell by 13.6% compared with 2006,
according to the Ministry of Information Industry. In February 2008, the
Ministry of Information Industry and the National Development and Reform
Commission jointly announced a price cut on mobile roaming service
charges from 54% to 73% depending on locality. The new policy will
stimulate mobile phone usage and the demand for rechargeable batteries,
and hence expanding the room of growth for the Group.

Meanwhile, with the implementation of the “Communication Projects in
Rural Areas” as promoted by the Chinese government, it is expected

that the demand for mobile phones in second and third tier cities and

rural areas will greatly increase and will continue to drive the demand for
mobile phone rechargeable batteries. By virtue of its foresight and by the
acquisition of competitor, the Group will expand its market shares in these
regions and will facilitate the Group’s expansion of its businesses.

A major task of the Group in 2008 is the integration of “Chaolitong 8 773& ”
to maximize the synergy between the two brands.
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHRESE

Sales and Brand Strategy

In the aspect of sales network, “SCUD 7RTERE ” and “Chaolitong i /J

38" will carry out division of labour according to their respective market
segmentation and pricing strategies. “SCUD RE[R " has already
established its nation-wide brand recognition among the business and
higher consumption class and will continue to focus on first tier and
second tier cities. It will further improve on its distributors and terminal
points of sales to enhance sales efficiency and introduce systemic
management. Meanwhile, with the target on particular high consumption
cities, the Group will further increase points of sales. In addition to the
increase in market share in Guangdong, Hubei and Henan, the Group will
also explore the markets in the rim of Shanghai. “Chaolitong #8 /73 ”, as
a popular brand, has also obtained the general recognition of consumers.
It has established an extensive and effective sales network among rural
areas and second tier and third tier cities, and will continue to focus on
such sector for further development. “SCUD FRERR” and “Chaolitong
7138 ” together have established the most extensive sales network of own
brand mobile phone rechargeable battery pack in the PRC through the
50,000 points of sales across the country. The Group will implement a
strategy of brand and price segmentation to set up a strong market barrier
to consolidate the dominating market share and scale of the Group.

Expansion of Production Capacity

With the full resumption of production of the Group at the end of 2007, the
Group also continues to pursue the enhancement of capacity and plans to
further expand its leased plant areas by 1,700 square metres in 2008. The
Group plans to increase its annual production capacity of rechargeable
batteries from 48,000,000 units to 65,000,000 units to meet the ever-
increasing market demand.

The acquisition of the operating assets of “Chaolitong #2773 * also
contributes to the increase in production capacity. The annual production
capacity of rechargeable batteries of “Chaolitong 2 1738 ” in 2008

was 25,000,000 units, together with the Group itself, the total annual
production capacity in the middle of 2008 is expected to be 90,000,000
units. The Group plans to improve the production facilities and workflow
of “Chaolitong i /138 ” and enhance its production efficiency, as an
intermediate initiative to increase the production capacity of the Group.

According to the latest plan, the first self-owned plant is expected to be
completed by the end of 2008 where the production lines of the Group in
Fuzhou will be concentrated. The total annual production capacity of the
Group is expected to be increased to 100 million units by the end of 2008.
According to the market forecast by the Group, it will meet production
requirement in 2009, 2010 and 2011.
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TREHRES

In order to prepare for the expansion of the Group’s operations and
market share, the Group moved into its newly rented administrative
headquarter building in December last year. The Group continues to base
its headquarter in Fuzhou, and production and research and development
will be based in Fuzhou and Shenzhen. The advantages of the greater
region will be integrated for the development of the national market.

Merger and Acquisition, Accelerate

Development

In addition to the acquisition and integration of “Chaolitong i 773 ”, the
Group will continue to look for other suitable acquisition targets for the
extension of the existing value chain of the Group, the effective generation
of synergy and the utilization of the advantages of the “SCUD R ER&
brand. Besides the Group will also study possible modes of operation and
cooperation, in order to maximize the value of the “SCUD FRFEfE ” brand
and sales network.

In addition to the principal development of the business of mobile phone
rechargeable batteries, the Group will also develop rechargeable batteries
for other digital products and batteries for notebook computers and
telecommunication devices to diversify the product mix and broaden its
revenue bases.

The Group resumed its expansion in half year after the challenges of 2007
with its market position unshaken. | would like to express my gratitude to
the staff of the Group for their solidarity and loyalty, and to our customers,
suppliers and distributors for their incessant support and encouragement.
“SCUD FRERE " has attained the highest honour in the industry, proves
the intrinsic value of the brand and obtains recognition from general
consumers. The year 2008 is particularly meaningful for the Group. We
are fully confident in the market prospect and business development of
the mobile phone rechargeable battery packs and are well prepared to
capitalize on the available opportunities in the market to attain new record
high results for “SCUD FREER " and to maximize the benefits and value to
the shareholders.

Fang Jin
Chairman

Fuzhou, PRC
17 March 2008
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Market Review

In 2007, PRC’s economy continued its fast development and led to

an increase in per capita income. This brought unlimited opportunities
and potentials to telecommunication and electronic products related
industry. The number of mobile phone users in the PRC also continued
to increase. According to the “Statistics Report on the Development

of the Telecommunication Industry in the PRC in 2007” published by
the Ministry of Information Industry, the number of mobile phone users
reached approximately 540,000,000 at the end of 2007, an increase

of approximately 20% from approximately 460,000,000 last year. The
coverage increased from approximately 35.3 mobile phones per 100
persons to approximately 41.6 mobile phones per 100 persons. With
the increase in personal consumption and the continuous rise of living
standard, the demand for new models and models with multi-media
functions also increased. These factors greatly stimulated the demand
for high quality, high safety and high capacity batteries by mobile phone
users in the PRC and created vast opportunities in the rechargeable
battery market. It is believed that the development of medium and high
end rechargeable branded batteries will be facilitated. It is also expected
that more mobile phone users in the PRC will buy spare rechargeable
batteries. According to the Report on the Current State and Trend of
Mobile Phone Battery Industry in the PRC from 2006 to 2007 published
by FPDisplay Research Centre, it was estimated that in 2007 the demand
for replacement batteries amounted to 210,000,000, an increase of 12%
from 180,000,000 in 2006.

During the year, the Group actively maintained its market leader position.
Its market share in the market of branded mobile phone rechargeable
batteries was approximately 12%. Driven by the fast development of

the Chinese economy, the implementation of “Communication Projects
in Rural Areas” as promoted by the Chinese government and the
expectation of the grant of 3G mobile phone licenses by the Chinese
government in the near future, it is believed that the coverage of mobile
phone users will be further increased. Suppliers of rechargeable batteries
with competitiveness will be provided with more room for development.
It is expected that the popularity of mobile phones will greatly increase
the demand for medium to low end branded rechargeable batteries and
mobile phone accessories in second tier and third tier cities, towns and
rural areas.
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Business Review

Management of the Group was been responding to the opportunities
and challenges arised in the market positively, striving to maintain its
market leader position dedicated to maximizing the benefits and value to
shareholders.

The serious fire at the Fuzhou plant in May 2007 destroyed a majority
of the Group’s inventory and affected the turnover and net profit of the
Group in the first half of 2007. In the first half of 2007, the Group for the
first time recorded a loss of approximately RMB125.3 million as a result
of the fire. Nevertheless, the Group worked very hard to recover from
the loss and turnaround successfully in the second half of 2007. The
Group’s turnover, gross profit and profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year were RMB960.9 million, RMB243.5 million and
RMB15.5 million respectively. The turnover and gross profit increased
2.6% and 1.3% respectively from the previous year, while the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased 90.3%. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year included net
loss due to the fire of approximately RMB164.6 million (net of insurance
compensation of approximately RMB52.5 million). Gross profit margin
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for the year was not materially affected by the fire and was maintained at
25.3% (2006: 25.7%), while net profit margin decreased 15.5% to 1.6%.
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Business of the Group mainly include the self-owned “SCUD R ERE
brand and OEM business. During the year, the two business segments
represented 64.1% and 33.8% of the turnover of the Group respectively,
which approximate the proportion in the previous year. The gross profit
margin from own brand business and OEM business of the Group was
28.1% and 21.5% respectively, mainly due to the effective implementation
of key performance indicators evaluation system in the year to further
control purchase and production costs to enable overall production
efficiency and economy of scale to rise continuously. In addition, in 2007
the sales volume of the more profitable medium and high end branded
rechargeable batteries increased substantially from 2006 and led to an
increase in the gross profit of the branded business. The acquisition and
integration of a major competitor also served to stabilize the market prices
of rechargeable batteries in the PRC. The Group will continue to focus
on the expansion of its own brand business and strengthen its OEM
business.

In January 2008, the Group ranked 28th out of 200 as the Forbes

Most Potential Enterprises in China. This reflected the affirmation and
recognition of the operation capability, increase in earnings and operation
mode of the Group in the market.

Own Brand Business

The “SCUDRERR " brand is well-known and popularly recognized by the
consumers in the PRC. In 2007, the Group accounted for approximately
12% of the branded mobile phone rechargeable batteries market share
in the PRC. Approximately 64.1% of the Group’s products were sold

in the PRC market under the “SCUD R EHE ” brand. The turnover and
gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 were approximately
RMB616.0 million and approximately RMB173.0 million respectively.

In 2007, the sales volume of medium and high end branded batteries
(including the Business series (7% £ %)) and the Gold series (&

5 Z751))) of the Group increased 28.3% from 2006. During the past

five years, the sales volume of the Group’s own brand rechargeable
batteries achieved substantial increase. The sales volume in 2007 was
approximately 25,000,000 units which is about 6.6 times of the 2003
figure (approximately 3,800,000 units), reflecting the rapid growth of the
Group and the popularity of its brand.
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The “SCUD FRFERE " brand is a valuable asset of the Group and is well-
known and recognized in the PRC market. The brand received a number
of awards. For example, the “SCUD FRFEER " brand’s Li-ion battery was
named twice in 2004 and 2007 as “China Top Brand”; the “SCUD FRE R ”
brand received the award of “China Famous Trademark” in 2006 and was
awarded one of “PRC’s 500 Most Valuable Brands” by World Brand Lab
for three consecutive years.
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Quality and brand name are two of the main factors contributing to the
success of the Group. The Group will continue to devote resources to
strengthen and enhance its brand awareness across the country and
innovate on marketing, mode of sales and packaging to meet with the
demand in the market.

The quality of mobile phone batteries in the PRC vary greatly. However,
since the establishment of the Group, it has placed safety and quality as
the top priority and set strict standards in areas such as raw materials
purchase, production workflow and quality control. In December last year,
the “SCUD 7RFERR " brand’s Li-ion battery was awarded a Certificate of
Exemption from Government Inspection (“ BIZR %8 2 & ") by the General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of

PRC (“AQSIQ”). The Group is the first and only domestic producer of Li-
ion batteries that has been awarded such Certificate of Exemption. The
confirmation on the “SCUD REER ” brand by the AQSIQ further manifests
the competitiveness of the Group’s products in the aspects of quality,
safety and brand value, and strengthens the confidence of consumers in
the “SCUD FRFERR " brand. Stringent quality control and brand awareness,
both inter-related, form one of the core competitive advantages of the
Group.

The Group possesses strong research and development capabilities
which enable it to cater for the demand from the ever-changing mobile
phone models in the market and to maintain its market competitiveness.
During the year, the Group invested approximately RMB12.5 million in
research and development with the focus on new moulds development
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and quality inspection. The research and development expenses
accounted for approximately 1.3% of total turnover in 2007. As at 31
December 2007, the products of the own “SCUD FRE & ” brand of the
Group include approximately 2,800 models of mobile phone rechargeable
batteries which are compatible to 3,100 models of mobile phones. The
Group will continue to follow closely the market demand and develop
more product types and models to satisfy the needs of various customers.
Furthermore, the Group will endeavour to develop the medium and high
end market with higher gross profit margin, aiming to increase the overall
profitability of the Group.

With technologies ever-changing, various types of portable electronic
products are invented. In order to capitalize on such vast opportunities,
the Group, in addition to mobile phone rechargeable battery packs,
also supplied small quantities of battery packs for digital products,
chargers and other peripherals which accounted for approximately
RMB58.2 million, RMB25.2 million and RMB33.9 million of the Group’s
total turnover respectively. As at the date of this announcement, the
Group has developed approximately 250 models of rechargeable
battery packs compatible to major popular models of digital cameras
and camcorders and approximately 300 models of chargers, aiming at
the provision of more diversified product types to increase sources of
income. In the future, the Group expects to strengthen its research and
development capabilities to provide rechargeable battery packs which
will be compatible to more portable electronic products and gradually
increase their sales proportion in accordance with the progress of market
development.

Sales Network

The sales network of the Group mainly comprises distributors and terminal
points of sales, forming an extensive coverage. As at 31 December 2007,
the number of first tier distributors of the Group has exceeded 360, at
least over 180 of which were exclusive distributors. The number of points
of sales exceeded 35,000, basically covering first tier and second tier
cities with high consumption power. During the year, in addition to the
existing network, the Group made effort to explore points of sales in
Guangdong, Hubei and Hunan and attained satisfactory performance.

In order to further enhance the brand image, the Group has carried out
enhancement to the network and renovation of its display counters since
last year to build a unified and more outstanding brand image. As at 31
December 2007, the renovation of more than 2,000 display counters
had been completed. The Group plans to complete the renovation of
approximately 4,000 display counters in phases in 2008 and 2009.
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The Acquisition of “Chaolitong & 713i&”

The Group has been striving to expand its business and to enhance

its market share through various channels. Last December, the Group
had entered into an agreement to acquire the principal operating assets

relating to the “Chaolitong#2 /13" brand, one of the largest competitors of
the Group in the PRC, for a total consideration not more than RMB245.0
million. The Group believes that by virtue of the different advantages of the
two brands, the acquisition can create synergy and facilitate the Group

to lower the cost of expansion in the rural market and the risk of market
competition. The acquisition can also enhance the production capacity,
reduce composite costs and raise efficiency of the Group. The strength of
the “SCUDFRERR” brand lies in its research and development capabilities,
quality assurance and brand advantage, while the “Chaolitong #8 /73
brand established its market share in rural areas and second tier and

third tier cities by virtue of its low costs. The Group can extend its sales
network into such markets with lower costs after the acquisition.

The majority of the sales and turnover of the Group’s “SCUD FRFE &R ”
brand concentrate on regions along the eastern coast of China, while
“Chaolitong 8 /7138 ” possesses a strong sales network in second tier

and third tier cities, towns and village in the PRC which readily offsets the
insufficiency of the Group’s sales network in such regions and enable the
Group to increase its market share and coverage with minimum costs

in short periods of time and quickly explore markets where coverage

was originally relatively low. After the completion of the acquisition, the
products of the Group will continue to be sold in the respective “SCUD 7
FERE” brand and “Chaolitong #8 /738 ” brand. “SCUD FREER ” will focus on
medium and high end markets, while “Chaolitong #2738 " will concentrate
on the lower end market, each complementing the other. This will facilitate
the permeation of the Group’s products into each market segment and
the expansion of the market share to cover more mobile phone models,
establish more outstanding brand images for the Group’s brands and
further enhance brand awareness by the adjustment in brand promotion
strategies. g
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Furthermore, through the integration of two of the largest mobile phone
rechargeable battery producers in the PRC, the Group can increase its
product variety and accelerate the research and development of products.
Through further integration of resources of research and development,

the duplication of resources can be avoided on product development.
Meanwhile, bulk purchase can help reduce the costs of production and
purchase of raw materials. As the production capacity increases, the
Group can enjoy more bargaining power in price negotiation and in the
stabilization of market prices of battery product, which facilitate the long-
term growth of the Group.

OEM Business

Apart from own brand business, the Group’s quality products also attract
domestic and foreign manufacturers of quality brand mobile phones. The
Group sells original rechargeable batteries to mobile phone manufacturers
in OEM form which provides stable operating income and technological
upgrades to the Group. As at 31 December 2007, the turnover from OEM
business amounted to approximately RMB325.2 million, representing
approximately 33.8% of the total turnover. Major customers include
Lenovo, Huawei, ZTE, UT Starcom, Sangfei, Hisense and Haier. The
Group has established long-term stable relationships with its customers.
The periods of cooperation with the majority of customers generally
exceed 4 years.

Report on the Fire

A serious fire occurred in the Group’s production plant at Fuzhou in

the afternoon of 31 May last year due to short circuit in battery. The
management on site immediately arranged to put out the fire and informed
the authorities. As the fire spread quickly to part of the production
facilities, raw materials and products, direct loss of approximately
RMB218.1 million was incurred, including inventory of approximately
RMB199.4 million. However, fortunately no human loss or injury resulted.
Afterwards, the Group immediately activated the contingency plan to
direct the resumption of production and the recovery. Within two weeks of
the incident the supply of goods to the market gradually resumed and the
supply of goods for the OEM business also fully resumed within a short
period.
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The production capacity was fully restored and resumed normal
operations by the end of 2007. China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd.,
the insurer of the Group completed the evaluation report on the accident
in November 2007 and an agreement on the amount of the insurance
claim was reached. China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. had paid
the Group compensation amounting to approximately RMB52.5 million.
Hence, the net loss resulting from the fire was approximately RMB164.6
million. In order to prevent the occurrence of similar events in the future,
the Group has actively taken a number of measures. A portion of the
compensation will be utilized to increase the number of fire extinguishing
equipments at the plant, carry out patrol and inspection to maintain clear
passageways and sufficient water supply for fire fighting, organize regular
safety education and training for staff, including the provision of training
to staff for handling and safekeeping inflammable goods, conduct safety
fire drills, increase in investment on fire safety in the new plant to ensure
sufficiency of fire fighting facilities. The Group believes that the relevant
measures can effectively lower the risk of fire. The remaining portion of
the compensation will be utilized to purchase supplies and to extend
insurance coverage for the Group. The Group has subsequently made a
more comprehensive insurance plan for the period from January 2008 to
January 2009.

Prospects and Outlook

Management believes that due to the continuous growth of the

PRC economy and particularly the series of incentive policies for the
development of rural economy formulated, the demand for 3C products
will increase rapidly. This will also lead to an increase in the demand for
rechargeable battery packs as power source for relevant devices. The
Group not only benefited from the increase in mobile phones in the PRC,
but also from the advancement in multi-media functions of mobile phones
and the substantial increase in energy consumption. Moreover, as 3G
technology gradually matures in foreign markets. China will also accelerate
its development of 3G networks and accordingly it is expected that the
introduction of 3G networks in the near future will also bring unlimited
opportunities to the Group. In order to capitalize on the market, the Group
has formulated development strategies for further strengthening of its
market leadership and the expansion of its operation scale by utilising its
internal financial resources and the proceeds from initial public offering.

The telecommunication fees in 2007 fell by 13.6% compared with 2006,
according to the Ministry of Information Industry. In February 2008,

the Ministry of Information Industry and the National Development and
Reform Commission jointly announced a price cut on mobile roaming
service charges from 54% to 73% depending on locality. The new policy
will stimulate the use of mobile phone and the demand for rechargeable
batteries, and hence expand the room of growth for the Group.

AEBZENEERBER _TTLFFK
ZEME - WEBIEREE - MAEENRRE
REFERKFFREBARR-ZEZLFE+—
HE%&%&%%M%ﬁﬁi’ WHIRE R
B EN IR - PRAFFRBR A BB
El%AE%&5wowE Eit, KB
HF B R4 A AR 164,600,0007T ° A8
HRBRBEREEMNERR - £EDEE
%myﬁhm B B S 1S ARG IR
B EEMMNaKERE - LERBE
SEFEET R EAK  EH#®TEIR
A E MET| - BIEIER 8 TR
HERRIFH SR MEH - BITLERHE
ES - WINKEFRENLT 2 AIRE N
- HEREKERIEEE - ANEEMEEERE
B HERE A PR IR B E AR - B E e
BOeAREEYEURBEERREREA
RIEZRBHE - AEBHEAEHB =TT
NE—REZZTTNF—AHHEEE-E
FRERIRRETE

AIRREE
EREARGE - B EE ARG T

B IE—RFIARNERENEENEI
B SCEMMFTIESREIEN - BT
PREFEREET RN _AAEELENT
REF o AEETEXERPEBHEEN
BEEE  TRNEABSHEFEZHKENE

REENMFEERBEMNBEMSE - 1t
SN SGEIMAEASNTIHE R - PEITR
& IR SG AR BRI - Bt TR
FEAARK KA FEA S B 3G AR E RA
SEHRERNEE - REEMSBRNE
# AEECDHIERRER  HEREA
A RN ERARESHSHIIR - B
—HEEK BT SREIMAALARH R

e

18 o

RIFEBEXTRENER RZTT+
F o BHAWRER-_ZZTNFTMH13.6% B
ZEENF R EEEEHLEKERAM
WELZESHASHFHEBEEE2HERY
WEBNT54% Z73% (RTEIGEME) o FIR

KRB ERERERYE ZXFTEES

B - AmMEAREERNG R



v

Management Discussion and Analysis

== TH &/'\*ﬁ.

—]

— 1= /B8 I:I
In the aspect of distribution network, according to its plan the Group
provide financial support to approximately 2,000 major terminal points
of sales in 2007, thereby enhancing the image of display counters and
bringing higher returns to the Group. In 2007 the renovation of more
than 2,000 display counters had been completed and the effect of brand
influence was very significant. The Group plans to continue its gradual
control of the number of distributors to maintain the quality of distributors
and enhance loyalty and reliability. Meanwhile, leveraging on a strong and
stable sales network, the Group will develop or source certain products
and accessories suitable for its sales network to enrich the product variety

for sales. This will maximize the advantages of fast permeation and low-
cost operation and aiming to enhance the profitability of individual outlet.
The Group, through its regional office, will strengthen management and
training of those display counters with renovation completed but pending
approval, aiming to enhance the performance and management of the
distributors. Furthermore, the Group is actively exploring other cities with
development potentials such as the south-west and north-west regions,
and is in the process of strengthening the training of quality distributors, in
an effort to expand the coverage of product distribution.

The Group has gradually carried out renovation and image enhancement
to the display counters since 2007. Hence, no additional resources

are required in the aspect of hardware for the sale of mobile phones

and other products. Meanwhile, the Group will provide training to the
front staff of selected points of sales to enhance the level of customer
services. During the first stage, the Group will select approximately 300
points of sales located in regions of higher consumption power such as
Fujian, and southern and eastern China for the trial sale of PRC brands of
mobile phones with the target on the middle-class customers. The Group
will regularly review on the sales status and adjust its strategy readily
according to market response and changes in order to maximize the
genuine value of the brand.
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In respect of products, the Group will continue to focus on the
maintenance of its market leadership of its own brand mobile phone
rechargeable batteries. Meanwhile, more resources will be devoted to
capitalize on the increased demand on other portable electronic devices
such as rechargeable batteries for notebook computers, digital cameras
and other personal electronic products, standard rechargers and
stationed backup batteries, in order to broaden the Group’s income base
and enhance its market competitiveness. In order to provide consumers
with more choices of products to meet their different needs, the Group
will keep abreast of the changes in the preferences of consumers and the
market trend, and will launch new series of rechargeable battery products
designed for various portable electronic devices on a timely basis.

In respect of research and development, the Group will further integrate
the resources with “Chaolitong # 7138 ” brand and implement division

of labour in order to avoid duplication and wastage of resources. The
development of medium and high end series rechargeable batteries

with large sales volume will be concentrated in Fuzhou, while the
development and production of low end series rechargeable batteries
will be co ncentrated in Shenzhen together with the “Chaolitong 2 71

38" brand products. The objective is to increase the investment of the
research and development of mobile phone rechargeable batteries and
accelerate the research and development of products in order to supply
rechargeable batteries to the non-mainstream models of mobile phone in
the market. Meanwhile, the Group will strive to commence new research
and development projects upon the introduction of new mobile phones
so that the Group will be able to launch its new products as early as
possible. The Group has developed a number of mobile phone battery
rechargers of unified standard, and expects to achieve results growth

in 2008. The Group will devote substantial research and development
efforts in notebook computer batteries and motive batteries to maintain
its technology leadership and lay the foundation for the exploration of new
businesses of the Group.
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Expansion of Production Capacity

The Group entered into an agreement in December 2007 for the
acquisition of the principal operating assets of “Chaolitong #8 /738 ” and
succeeded in the integration of the biggest competitor in the market.

In the aspect of the strategy of business development, the Group will
seek adjustment accordingly to utilize the new resources and brand
advantages to the largest extent. In respect of production facilities, the
Group continues to implement the production capacity expansion plans
and is expected to increase 5,000 sg.m. of rented plant areas in Fuzhou in
March 2008 with an increased annual production capacity of rechargeable
batteries by 8 million units. The Group also plans to restore the workshop
destroyed in the fire by July 2008 and that will add 5,000 sg.m. of its
production area with an additional annual production capacity of 7 million
units. In the production base in Shenzhen, the Group also plans to lease
another floor in March 2008 with a production area of approximately
1,700 sqg.m. to bring an additional annual production capacity of 2 million
units. After the completion of the above capacity expansion plans, the
total annual production capacity of the Group will be increased by 17
million units. Together with the current production capacity (as at the end
of February 2008) of 48 million units and the annual production capacity
from the principal operating assets of “Chaolitong ¥ /738" to be acquired
at 25 million units per year, it is expected that by mid-2008, the Group’s
production capacity will be increased to 90 million units per year, which is
1.9 times of the production capacity at the end of 2007 (48 million units

per year).
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The Group keeps increasing in rented plant areas to ensure the effective
expansion of production capacity. Meanwhile, the construction of our own
SCUD production plant in Fuzhou will continue and will be adjusted to
match the overall business development strategy of the Group. According
to the latest plan, the first self-owned plant is expected to be completed
by the end of 2008 where the production lines of the Group in Fuzhou will
be concentrated. The total annual production capacity of the Group will be
increased to 100 million units by the end of 2008. According to the market
forecast by the Group, it will meet the production requirement in 2009,
2010 and 2011. Furthermore, after the completion of the new plant, the
Group still retains a piece of land of approximately 42,000 sg.m.

The Group believes that the integration with “Chaolitong #8 7738 ” will
quickly increase its market share and its market coverage in rural areas
and greatly shorten the time for the extension of the sales network to the
rural areas and reduce expenses. It is expected that the effect will be
significant within two years. The Group will continue to seek integration
opportunities within the industry in 2008. Meanwhile, as a result of
acquisition and merger and the enhancement of own results, the demand
for core materials will substantially increase and the pace of development
has to be further enhanced to strengthen the production efficiency and
competitiveness. Accordingly, the Group will consider integration and
development opportunities when opportunities arise.

The Group has formulated important initiatives for its internal management
during the year. Firstly, the full implementation of key performance
indicators evaluation system has been commenced since July 2007.
Comprehensive budget management was implemented with strict
enforcement of the examination of monthly and quarterly operation and
monthly, quarterly and half-yearly conclusion on the operation of the
subsidiaries. Remedies are carried out once problems are identified.
Internal control is strengthened to prevent risks. In addition, designation
of positions and responsibilities for the internal management of the
companies under the Group, trimming management expenses, lowering
costs and enhancing management effectiveness, have also been
implemented. Preliminary results are seen in the second half of 2007 and it
is expected that the effect will be more significant in the following year.

Looking ahead, with the advent of the 3G mobile phone era, the market
leadership of the Group and its influence on the market and the enormous
business opportunities presented in the market of the rechargeable
batteries for 3C products in the PRC, the Group will continue to look for
merger and acquisition opportunities and further expand its business.
Meanwhile, the Group possesses leading position in the mobile phone
rechargeable battery industry in the PRC with its nation-wide distribution
network, the management of the Group firmly believes that, through
implementing the strategies, the Group is in a favorable position to
develop into the most preferred rechargeable battery brand for 3C
products in the PRC and generate fruitful returns for its shareholders.
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Financial Review

Turnover
During the year under review, the overall demand of rechargeable

battery packs and the peripherals for mobile phones and other portable
electronic devices in the PRC market continued to experience steady
growth, the market share of branded rechargeable battery packs held

by SCUD brands maintained at around 12% and SCUD continued to
maintain and strengthen its market leader position and competitiveness
in the distribution and marketing of rechargeable battery packs for mobile
phones in the PRC. The key factors driving for the demand growth of

our branded products included the strong demand brought about by
improved living standard and increased purchasing power in PRC and the
enhancement and development of mobile phones and portable devices
technology. The consolidated turnover of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2007 was approximately RMB960.9 million, representing
an increase by 2.6% as compared to the amount of approximately
RMB936.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2006. Presently,
mobile phone rechargeable batteries remain the major revenue driver and
profit contributor of the Group, accounted for approximately 74.2% of the
Group’s turnover (2006: 73.9%).

Segment Results
For the Group’s own brand business, owing to the serious fire at its

production plant in Fuzhou on 31 May 2007, the Group’s production had
been significantly disrupted and the sales of its own brand products were
also materially affected in the second half of 2007. Hence the turnover
attributable to the Group’s own brand business slightly decreased by
0.7% to approximately RMB616.0 million from approximately RMB620. 1
million. The Group’s own brand business as a percentage of the

Group’s turnover was maintained at approximately 64.1% in 2007 and
approximately 66.2% in 2006 respectively.

For the Group’s OEM business, the turnover attributable to the Group’s
OEM business maintained an increase of 2.9% from approximately
RMB316.2 million to approximately RMB325.2 million as the fire has

had limited impact on the OEM business. The supply of products was
resumed fully within a short period of time. The Group’s OEM business as
a percentage of the Group’s turnover was maintained at approximately
33.8% in 2007 (2006: 33.8%).
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Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB717.4 million
in 2007, representing an increase of 3.1% as compared to last year.
Direct materials, direct labour and other production cost accounted for
approximately 89.3%, 3.5% and 7.2% of the Group’s cost of sales. By
leveraging the competitive advantages in the PRC market and cost-
effective competitive strengths, as a percentage of the Group’s turnover,
the Group’s cost of sales maintained at approximately 74.7% (2006:
approximately 74.3%).

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin
The Group’s gross profit increased 1.2% from approximately RMB240.5

million for the year 2006 to approximately RMB243.5 million for 2007,
which was primarily due to the Group’s strategy to continue its focus on
developing high end products with higher profit margins and enhancement
of production efficiency. For the Group’s own brand business, gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB173.0 million was recorded in 2007,
slightly decreased by 0.7% from approximately RMB174.2 million in 2006
as the production in the second half of 2007 was disrupted by the fire.

For the Group’s OEM business, the gross profit increased by 5.6% from
approximately RMB66.3 million in 2006 to approximately RMB70.0 million
in 2007.

The gross profit margin of the Group maintained at around 25.3% in 2007
(2006: 25.7%). Since the fire was an exceptional event, the gross profit
margin of the Group’s own brand business was not materially affected
and had recorded a gross profit margin of 28.1% for 2007 (2006: 28.1%).
The gross profit margin can be maintained at a high level was primarily
the result of its strong brand advantages as well as the shift of product
mix towards higher margin own brand products during the year. For the
OEM business, the gross profit margin further improved from 21.0% to
21.5% over the year compared resulting from more stringent cost control
measures implemented throughout the year.

Profit for the Year
Due to the serious fire at Fuzhou Plant in May 2007, the Group recorded

a reduced net profit for the year of approximately RMB15.5 million,
representing a decrease of 90.3% as compared to 2006. Profit from
operation was approximately RMB183.0 million, representing a slight
decrease of 0.2% as compared to 2006. During the year under review,
the Group recorded losses from the fire of approximately RMB164.6
million which mainly represented the net amount of the exceptional losses
as a result of the fire in the Group’s production plant in Fuzhou on 31

May 2007 and the insurance compensation on the fire losses. Most of
the Group’s inventory had been destroyed and the Group’s production
was materially disrupted. The losses from the fire incident comprised
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approximately RMB199.4 million for inventory loss, approximately
RMB10.5 million for loss on property, plant and equipment and
approximately RMB8.3 million estimated costs for reconstruction of the
rented premises being damaged in the fire. The coverage of the Group’s
insurance plan was primarily for loss of inventory and products from

fire and not subsequent business disruption or other losses. The loss
adjusters has completed the investigation and has concluded that the
compensation amount to be approximately RMB52.5 million and the
Group received the compensation from the insurers in November 2007.
The Group had subsequently made a more comprehensive insurance plan
for the period from January 2008 to January 2009.

During the year, the Group recorded total operating expenses of
approximately RMB89.2 million, mainly comprising approximately
RMB29.1 million for selling and distribution expenses and approximately
RMB59.7 million for administrative expenses. Selling and distribution
expenses comprised approximately RMB13.2 million for advertising and
promotion expenses, approximately RMB5.8 million for salaries and
allowances, and approximately RMB2.7 million for transportation fee.
The selling and distribution expenses amounted to 3.0% of the Group’s
turnover, compared with 1.7% of the same in 2006. A higher selling and
distribution expenses was incurred for the current period as we increased
our advertising coverage for our branded products and further brand
building by way of upgrading our distribution network.

During 2007, the Group recorded administrative expenses of
approximately RMB59.7 million, comprising approximately RMB14.3
million for research and development expenses and approximately
RMB10.5 million for salaries and allowances. Research and development
expenses accounted for approximately 1.5% of the total turnover in
2007 (2006: 1.5%). The Group’s administrative expenses accounted for
approximately 6.2% of total turover in 2007, a growth of approximately
RMB4.4 million from 2006.

Other revenue amounted to approximately RMB28.7 million which mainly
represented interest income on bank deposits.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded profit
attributable to equity holders of approximately RMB15.5 million,
representing a turnaround from loss attributable to equity holders of
approximately RMB125.3 million for the six months ended 30 June 2007.
The full year profit attributable to equity holders for 2007 is reduced by
approximately RMB144.7 million as compared with the profit attributable
to equity holders of approximately RMB160.2 million for 2006. The
reduction recorded in current year was mainly the result of recognition

of the fire losses. Basic earnings per share for 2007 was approximately
RMB1.58 cents (2006: RMB26.35 cents).
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An interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share for the six months ended 30
June 2007 was declared and paid. A final dividend for the year ended

31 December 2007 of HK$0.02 per share, amounting to a total dividend
of approximately RMB18,578,000 is to be proposed for the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions
On 12 December 2007, the Company entered into the Agreement with

Mr. Ma Yuk Sang (the “Vendor”), the 30% shareholder of a 70% indirect
subsidiary (the “Purchaser”) of the Company that the Vendor agreed to
procure the sale of entire equity interest (“Sale Interest”) in Chaolitong
Technology Company Limited (“CLTT”) to the Purchaser and the sale

of the production equipment, inventory and intellectual property rights
(“Sale Assets”) of Chaolitong Electronics Company Limited (“CLTE”) to
CLTT. The Sale Assets, related senior management and employees who
are expected to join CLTT as from the CLTT completion date, the date
on which all the conditions to the Agreement are fulfilled (or waived, as
the case may be) and the acquisition of the Sale Interest and Sale Assets
are completed, have previously been responsible for managing the
manufacture and sale of rechargeable battery packs for mobile phones
under the “Chaolitong #8738 ” brand in China. The “Chaolitong #7738 "
brand is one of the largest competitors of the “SCUD” brand rechargeable
battery packs for mobile phones in China.

The total consideration for the acquisition of Sale Interest and Sale Assets
is up to RMB245 million, whereby RMB37 million will be paid for the
purchase of the Sale Interest and the Sale Assets and the balance of up
to RMB208 million to the Vendor. The RMB208 million consist of RMB91
million in cash and up to RMB117 million to be satisfied by the issue of

at least 30 million and no more than 60 million Consideration Shares at
HK$2.05 if the net profit after tax targets are met or exceeded for the
financial years ending 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010.

In addition to the above, the Group is also actively exploring opportunities
including potential business alliances, acquisition of businesses,
technology platforms or projects adjacent to existing value chain.
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The Group generated a net cash inflow from operating activities of
approximately RMB18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2007,
compared with approximately RMB50.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2006. The Group maintained a sound financial position in terms
of high assets liquidity and low debt burden. The Group’s cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2007 amounted
to approximately RMB497.9 million (31 December 2006: approximately
RMB611.0 million). The Group’s bank borrowings outstanding as at
31 December 2007 amounted to RMB14.4 million were all carried at
fixed interest rate and there was no particular seasonality of the Group’s
borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio
of the Group expressed as a percentage of interest bearing loans and
other borrowings over the total equity of approximately RMB972.3 million
(81 December 2006: approximately RMB835.7million) was 1.5% as at 31
December 2007 (at 31 December 2006: 18.7%). In addition, the Group
has restricted short term bank deposits of approximately RMB29.4 million
(81 December 2006: approximately RMB124.0 million).

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s current ratio was 5.4 times (31
December 2006: 3.3 times) based on current assets of approximately
RMB967.8 million (31 December 2006: RMB1,061.0 million) and current
liabilities of approximately RMB179.8 million (31 December 2006:
RMB319.7 million).

Accounts receivable turnover days were approximately 79.6 days for

the year ended 31 December 2007 as compared to approximately 76.9
days for the year ended 31 December 2006. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 62.1 days for the year ended 31 December 2007 as
compared to approximately 41.5 days for the year ended 31 December
2006. Accounts payable turnover days were approximately 42.8 days for
the year ended 31 December 2007 as compared to approximately 34.9
days for the year ended 31 December 2006.
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Net Current Assets and Net Assets
The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2007 was

approximately RMB788.0 million, an increase of 6.3% from the balance of
approximately RMB741.4 million recorded as at 31 December 2006. Net
assets rose to approximately RMB972.3 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB136.6 million or 16.3% over the balance as at 31
December 2006.

Pledge of Assets
At 31 December 2007, bank loans of approximately RMB1.4 million

were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB3.0 million.

At 31 December 2006, bank loans of approximately RMB56.9 million
were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount
of approximately RMB3.3 million and the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately RMB124.0 million.

Commitments
During the year, the Group was committed to the expansion of the

Group’s existing production facilities to enhance its production capacity.
The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2007
amounting to approximately RMB139.8 million (2006: approximately
RMB6.5 million) was mainly associated to the expansion of existing
capacity and the construction of the new production plant in Fuzhou. As
at 31 December 2007, the Group has not provided any form of guarantee
for any company outside the Group and has not been involved in any
material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no contingent liabilities. (2006:
Nil)

Capital Structure
During the year, the Company issued and allotted 39,000,000 shares of

HK$0.10 each at HK$2.02 each upon the exercise of the over-allotment
option for a total consideration of approximately HK$78.8 million. In
addition, the Company issued 93,001,246 shares of HK$0.10 each as a
result of the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of US$10 million. Consequent to the aforesaid events, the issued
share capital of the Company was increased by approximately HK$13.1
million (represented by 132,001,246 ordinary shares) to approximately
HK$99.5 million (represented by 992,001,246 ordinary shares).
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For the year 2007, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations
in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank
balances denominated in USD, JPY and HKD, their proportion to the
Group'’s total assets is insignificant. The directors consider no hedging
of exchange risk is required and there were no financial instruments
being used for hedging purposes during the year. Nevertheless, the
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and
will take prudent measures as and when it is appropriate.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option

Scheme
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 2,380 full-time employees

(2006: 2,349). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined by
the personal performance, professional qualification, industry experience
of the employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all levels
of employees are paid competitively within the standard in the market

and employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within

the framework of the Group’s salary, incentives and bonus scheme.

The management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group on a
regular basis and evaluates the working performance of the employees.
The remuneration of the employees includes salaries, allowances, year-
end bonus and social insurance etc. According to the relevant prevailing
laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has participated in the

social insurance plans set up by the related local government authorities,
including pension funds, medical insurance (including maternity insurance),
unemployment insurance and work-related injury insurance. The Group
has also participated in the mandatory provident fund scheme for its
Hong Kong employees in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance.

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme was
adopted for a period of 10 years and the Company by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or the Board of Directors of the Company may at
anytime terminate the Scheme without prejudice to the options granted
during the life of the Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately
prior to such termination.
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As at 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted under the pre-IPO share option scheme

(the “Scheme”) adopted by the Company prior to its listing and

remained outstanding under the Scheme was 23,830,000 shares

(2006: 24,970,000 shares), representing approximately 2.4% (2006:
approximately 2.9%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that time.
Since the adoption of the Scheme and as at 31 December 2007, no share
option has been granted or exercised under such Scheme and 1,140,000
share options had lapsed as a result of certain employees having left our
employment during the year.

Use of Proceeds
The Company raised an aggregate proceeds of HK$604.0 million as

a result of its initial public offering and net proceeds of approximately
HK$568.3 million was received after the deduction of relevant IPO fees
and commission incurred. Up to 31 December 2007, the Group has
utilized approximately RMB68.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$72.8 million) on expansion of production capacity and plant
construction, approximately RMB10.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.6 million) on brand promotion and improve distribution network,
approximately RMB55.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58.7
million) on repayment of bank borrowings. Remaining net proceeds of
approximately RMB398.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$425.2
million) were mainly used as daily working capital and held as deposits
with commercial banks.

In 2008, approximately RMB128.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$136.7 million) is expected to be reserved for the acquisition of the
Sale Interest and the Sale Assets and up to approximately RMB117.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$124.9 million) to be satisfied by
the issue of at least 30 million and no more than 60 million consideration
shares, further details of which are set out note 34 to the financial
statements.
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The Group’s Board of Directors consists of 8 Directors, 3 of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors
Fang Jin, aged 49, is an Executive Director and the Chairman of the

Group, and is a senior economist. He is also a co-founder of the Group.
Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s developmental planning,
operational and corporate investment decision-making and brand
strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-
making for years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD product
management and brand construction. He commenced his career at the
age of 18, and has accumulated over twenty years of experience in the
mobile phone accessories industry and related operation management.
He has very keen discernment and vision on the exploration of brand
market and the marketability of new products. Prior to the establishment
of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co. Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”) in 1997, Mr.
Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the sale of communication
products and accessories in the PRC. In December 1996, he found Cai
Hong Group (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. (“Cai Hong”) in conjuction with partners
including Mr. Lin Chao (and established Scud Electronics in October
1997). Mr. Fang has received several awards including:

2003 National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004 Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004 Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005 China Top Ten Excellent Entreprenuers in Brand
Construction

2005 The Mudell’s World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006 Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006 National Excellent Managers of Users’ Satisfaction

Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and Technological
Development Region, Vice Chairman of the First Committee of the
Productivity Enhancement Association in Fujian, the First Honorary
Chairman of the Fuzhou Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen, a member
of the 5th Standing Committee of the Association of the Battery Industry in
China and a member of China Association of Quality Inspection.
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Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of Swift Joy Holdings
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at

31 December 2007, Mr. Fang is interested in 402,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 40.52% of the issued share capital of the

Company, and options which were granted under the Company’s pre-
listing share option scheme in respect of 5,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 0.51% of the issued share capital of the Company, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Lin Chao, aged 42, is an Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of
the Group. He is also a co-founder of the Group and an economist. Mr.
Lin is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Fang to formulate the Group’s
development and operations, investments and brand strategies. Mr. Lin
had excellent performance in aspects of OEM business development,
purchasing cost control and customer relationship. In 1997, in conjunction
with Mr. Fang Jin as a partner, he established Cai Hong (and established
Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Lin had been a director,

vice general manager, general manager and chief executive of Scud
Electronics and possessed 20 years’ experience in business development
and inventory control in the electronics industry. Mr. Lin was originally a
staff member of a State-owned enterprise, and entered the commercial
sector in 1986. He was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the distribution
and retail sale of telecommunication products such as telephones,
walkie-talkies and long-distance cordless phones in Fuzhou, the main
accessories of which include mobile phone batteries and chargers. He
also set up repair workshops to provide after-sale maintenance services.
Mr. Lin is a member of China Association of Quality Inspection, a member
of the standing council of Fuzhou Foreign Investment Association and

a member of the 11th Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Fuzhou City.

Mr. Lin is the sole director and shareholder of Right Grand Holdings
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31
December 2007, Mr. Lin is interested in 180,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 18.15% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
options which were granted under the Company’s pre-listing share option
scheme in respect of 4,000,000 shares, representing approximately 0.4%
of the issued share capital of the Company, within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Guo Quan Zeng, aged 47, is an Executive Director and President of

the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible for the management

of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the Group in July 1997. He

had been the managers of the research and development department,
sales department, planning department, production department and
quality control departments of Scud Electronics, and had been director,
vice general manager and vice president. He has abundant experience

in junior level management in OEM business development, brand
promotion, product research and development and quality control. Prior
1o joining the Group, Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer of
the PRC navy mainly responsible for establishing and maintaining wireless
telecommunication systems. Mr. Guo has over 24 years of experience

in the research and development and quality management in electronic
products. Mr. Guo graduated from the Navy Senior Electronic Engineering
School with a bachelor’s degree in radio telecommunication engineering in
1988.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31
December 2007, Mr. Guo is interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 1.81% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
options which were granted under the Company’s pre-listing share option
scheme in respect of 3,500,000 shares, representing approximately
0.35% of the issued share capital of the Company, within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Li Hui Qiu, aged 42, is an Executive Director and Vice President of

the Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Li assists the President in
managing the Group’s internal management, information system, external
administrative affairs and investments. Mr. Li joined the Group in January
2003 and had excellent achievement in the setting up of the Group’s
information system and the implementation of brand strategy. Mr. Li

was the Director and Executive Deputy General Manager of Fujian Yutek
Electronics Company Limited, a company held by Furi Stock Company
Limited, Deputy Head of the enterprise management division of Liaoning
Investment Group, Director of Shenyang Jinjian Short Fiber Composite
Material Company Limited, a company held by Liaoning Investment
Group, Director of Liaoning Jianye Technology Development Co. Ltd.
and production factory head of No.35 Factory of Shenyan Aircraft
Industry Group. Mr. Li has accumulated nearly 20 years of experience in
manufacturing industry management. Mr. Li graduated from the Nanjing
Aeronautic University in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering.

In 1998, he graduated from Beijing Aeronautic University with a Master’s
degree in engineering.
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Non-Executive Director
Ho Man, aged 38, is a non-executive Director. He holds a Master of

Science degree in Finance from the London Business School, and is a
Chartered Financial Analyst and Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Ho is
the Managing Director and Head of China Growth and Expansion Capital
of CLSA Capital Partners (HK) Ltd. He joined the CLSA Group in 1997.
Mr. Ho has over 10 years of experience in private equity and he has been
responsible for deal sourcing, evaluation and structuring, negotiation, post
investment monitoring and realization, with particular emphasis on Hong
Kong and the PRC. Mr. Ho was appointed a non-executive Director of the
Company on 3 December 2006.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Heng Kwoo Seng, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director.

He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

in England and Wales and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has worked with a number

of companies listed on the Stock Exchange either in the capacity of
company secretary or as an independent non-executive director. In the
last three years, he was also an independent non-executive director of
The Thai-Asia Fund Limited (until 13 March 2006), The Thai Asset Fund
Limited (until 27 January 2006), Winfair Investment Company Limited (until
1 April 2007) and Tack Fat Group International Limited (until 31 August
2007). He is currently an independent non-executive director of China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Holdings Limited, Lee & Man Holding Limited,
Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited, Minth Group Limited, Soundwiill
Holdings Limited, SIM Technology Group Limited, The United Laboratories
International Holdings Limited, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited and
Zhong An Real Estate Limited, and a company secretary of AEON Stores
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited and China Life Insurance Company Limited,

all of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2006.

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company and a senior engineer. He graduated from East China
University of Science & Technology with a Bachelor’s degree in chemistry.
He has nearly 11 years of experience in the management of the battery
industry. He had served as the engineer-in-charge of the household
products division in the Ministry of Light Industries, as deputy department
head of the campus department of the Education Bureau and as the
deputy officer-in-charge of the Household Products Office. He is currently
the Executive Vice-president and Secretary General of China Battery
Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 3 December 2006.
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Wang Jian Zhang, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company and is a senior engineer. Mr. Wang graduated from Xian
Military Institute of Telecommmunication Engineering. He has 21 years of
experience in electronic technology and management. Prior to joining the

Group, Mr. Wang had served as deputy director of the Promotion Division
of Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics
Industry, director of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment
Division under Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-
general of the Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry

of Electronics, and director-general of the Comprehensive Planning
Department under the Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang joined
the Company on 3 December 2006 as an independent non-executive
Director.

Senior Management

Pan Liang Chun, aged 34, is currently the general manager of Scud
Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”) He is responsible

for the entire operations of Scud Shenzhen. The main operation of the
Scud Shenzhen was originally commercial premiums and OEM products
and has now been completely directed to the production of SCUD brand
products. Mr. Pan joined the Group in December 2001 and had served as
the director of the operation of the north-western, central and Guangdong
Regions of the Scud Electronics and the general manager of the Own
Brand Affairs Department. He had superior judgment and wisdom in
brand market development and planning. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Pan was the head of the manufacturing division of Fuging Dayi Electronic
Company Limited, general manager Fuzhou Weitong Leatherware
Company Limited and general manager of Gansu Wanling Telecom
Equipment Company Limited. Mr. Pan has nearly ten years of experience
in the sales of telecommunication products. Since he joined the Group,
he has been mainly responsible for the development of sales distribution,
brand construction and marketing management. Mr. Pan graduated

from Fujian Broadcasting University in 1997 with a Bachelor’s degree in
business administration.
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Qiu Jun Ming, age 61, is the general manager of Scud Electronics. He

is responsible for the entire operations of Scud Electronics. The main
responsible business is the production of OEM products, including mobile
phone batteries and chargers and notebook computer batteries. Mr.

Qiu joined the Group in April 2004 and had been the general manager

of the notebook business department and the vice president of Scud
Electronics. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qiu had served as consultant
at Perfect Source Tech (PST) Co., Ltd., as director and vice president

of the Solomon Group, as general manager of Chen-Hsong Machinery
Co., Ltd., as general manager of Jimmy Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. and as staff
manager of Radio Corporation of America. He has nearly 36 years of
experience in the electronics manufacturing industry. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of the Taipei Institute of Industry
in Taiwan Province in 1967 and from Chung Yuan Christian University with
a Master’s degree in information technology in 1987.

Huang Yan, aged 29, is the Executive Deputy General Manager of
SCUD (Fujian) Battery Co. Ltd (“Scud Battery”), and is responsible for
the overall operation management of Scud Battery. The main business
of Scud Battery is SCUD own brand products. Ms. Huang joined the
Group in February 2001 and has served as the manager of the own brand
business division of Scud Electronics. She has strong knowledge in the
management of brand business, production planning and team building.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Huang had served as an assistant to the
General Manager of =B 42E (5 B /A7) in Fujian. Ms. Huang has nearly
7 year’s experience in the business of telecommunication products.

Her service in the Group mainly involves the management of distribution
channels, the development of brand products and team building. Ms.
Huang graduated from Fujian Cadet Academy of Economic Management
in 1999 in the specialty of trading.

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 31, is the Qualified Accountant and
Company Secretary of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer

of the Group and is responsible for the overall financial and accounting
affairs. He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung worked as

an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more than 9 years
of experience in the accounting field. He has a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration and Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in
September 2005.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of SCUD Group Limited would like to
present its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 20 July 2006 as an exempted company. It was subsequently listed on
the Stock Exchange on 21 December 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are set
out in the consolidated income statements on page 71.

An interim dividend for the six months period ended 30 June 2007 of
HK$0.02 per share, amounting to a total interim dividend of approximately
RMB19,211,000, was declared and paid to the shareholders.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of HK$0.02

per share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately
RMB18,578,000, is to be proposed for the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2007 comprised the accumulated profits, other reserves and
share premium of approximately RMB773.9 million.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Fang Jin (Chairman)

Lin Chao (Vice Chairman)
Guo Quan Zeng (President)
Li Hui Qiu (Vice President)

reappointed on 10 May 2007
reappointed on 10 May 2007
reappointed on 10 May 2007
reappointed on 10 May 2007

,\,\,\,\
— = = =

Non-executive Director:

Ho Man (reappointed on 10 May 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Heng Kwoo Seng (reappointed on 10 May 2007)

Wang Jing Zhong (reappointed on 10 May 2007)
Wang Jian Zhang (reappointed on 10 May 2007)

According to the requirements of Article 87(1) of the articles of association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Fang Jin,
Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng and Mr. Li Hui Qiu

have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of
three years, commencing on 21 December 2006 which may only be
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the service contract after
the first two years by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior notice in writing. As a result of the fire at a production plant
of the Company, further details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 June 2007, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng proposed a
salary cut of 30% for himself for one year and 10% for a half year for

the rest of the executive committee members (including Mr. Li Hui Qiu).
Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao have no salary according to the services
contracts.
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Mr. Ho Man, Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang
Jian Zhang have entered into letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of one year, commencing from 21 December 2006 which
provide that either party may terminate the relevant appointment by
giving to the other prior written notice of not less than three months. The
new appointment letters have not been re-executed into upon expiry of
the above appointment letters to record the continual engagement of
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
of the Company and it is expected that new appointment letters will
be signed by the above directors upon conclusion of the 2008 annual
general meeting of the company to record the same and confirm their
appointments from the expiry of the above appointment letters up to and
including the date of the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there are no service contracts for any of the
directors who are nominated for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting which are not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2007, the relevant interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”), which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO)) or were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or were required, pursuant to the
relevant provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:
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Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary shares of the Company
subject to (Note 4)
Number of options granted A F
issued ordinary R ERE 2RITRA
Name of Director Capacity shares held Wz ZESHK
EEER 514 ZEKREA ZEKREAE (Kt 4)
Fang Jin Corporate interest (Note 1) 402,000,000 - 40.52%
Pk NEEm (Mt 1)
Beneficial interest - 5,000,000 0.50%
B
Lin Chao Corporate interest (Note 2) 180,000,000 - 18.15%
MR NRER (et 2)
Beneficial interest - 4,000,000 0.40%
BEngn
Guo Quan Zeng Corporate interest (Note 3) 18,000,000 - 1.81%
2PRIE NEVER (T 3)
Beneficial interest - 3,500,000 0.35%
gy
Li Hui Qiu Beneficial interest - 2,800,000 0.28%
FEM Eagn
Note 1. These shares are directly held by Swift Joy Holdings Limited, whose entire Bat1 - ZERGBREZERERAREER
issued share capital is held by Fang Jin. B HERHEETROBAIRIEE °

Note 2: These shares are directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, whose entire #7322 -

issued share capital is held by Lin Chao.

Note 3: These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings Limited, whose entire Hiat3 -

issued share capital is held by Guo Quan Zeng.

Note 4: As per the provisions of the SFO, we have taken into account the number of ~ A/a# 4 -

shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2007 when calculating

DHIERZERE R AR EER
B BITROD AMERA -

Bin iR SIERER AR EER
B BT B FRIETFA o

IREFE T M HIE RPN IR - REtEZ

BOLE  BRREBETTLF T

this percentage. A=+—HEBTHNARRRNEE -
BIA LTSN RZTTLF+=A

=+—B BEESIERTHRABRESE
i YN Wi /N R ER G S} ke
A& RABEERR (D PR B (R IORE ©

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives or
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31 December 2007.

SHARE OPTIONS BkE

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes, namely Share Option AR R Z BIRAETEID B ABRETE K E
Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, are set out in note 31 to the RARBERERERS - BEFBEHASR
BIRHREMIFEST -

consolidated financial statements.
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(@  The following table discloses movements in the Company’s Pre-IPO  (a) TREENR-ZTZ /\i-f— A=+—H
Share Option Scheme during the period from 21 December 2006 (B EmBBDE=ZZ+F+=A
(the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2007 (the “Post-listing period”). =+ —H AR LA A AR]
BRAFREERBRETS 2 EH -

Exercised
Exercise  Outstanding  Outstanding Granted during the Forfeited  Outstanding
Name Date of grant price at21.12.2006  at1.1.2007 during  post-listing during at 31.12.2007

RZEBRE  RZE3t the year period theyear R-BELE
+t-B=+-B £-A-AH RER  LHRHE RER +=ZB=t-H

#% RiAH %@ WA WA Eit it BE WA
(HKS)
(&7
Category I:
54
Directors
g%
Fang Jin 21.12.2006 2.02 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Jika
Lin Chao 21.12.2006 2.02 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
i
Guo Quan Zeng 21.12.2006 2.02 3,500,000 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
PR
LiHui Qiu 21.12.2006 2.02 2,800,000 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000
ran

Total directors
BRG
15,300,000 15,300,000 - - - 15,300,000

Category II:
ECR:

Senior management: 21.12.2006 2.02 3,200,000 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
RREERE

Category I
£-8:

Other staff 21.12.2006 2.02 6,470,000 6,470,000 - - (1,140,000) 5,330,000
EMET

Total of all categories 24,970,000 24,970,000 - - (1,140,000 23,830,000
Fre Rl st
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules and the
terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO share option scheme, all Options are
subject to the following vesting period:

Period of exercise of the relevant percentage of option

TR ENREE D 2R

From the expiry of the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the second anniversary of
the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

M BT B BRI AR E L B AR
FmMASFZ &% BRI (REEEMX)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of the
Listing Date to the last date of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B b AR mAE SR E T H A
SHRZREREARILE(BEERRXR)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B BRREDR=BERE T B e
FOMPNES 2 & BB (BREEEMK)

The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company and
was fixed at HK$2.02 per share.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2007 was the Company or any of
its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of

the acquisition of shares in, or convertible bonds of, the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2007, the following persons (other than directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

RIE ETRAMEMERRS - URERAH
BERIBAAER B 2 R BRI - FRERERR
REZSFEMIT : —

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

AiITEBEREZESEDL

30% of the total number of Options granted
BRI A E 2 30%

30% of the total number of Options granted

R HEREREZ 30%

40% of the total number of Options granted
ERDBRELRZ 40%

TR ERARNRESEE  MAEEZITE
BAEK2.028TT -

ESWERONES ZEF

B EX [HERcE | AT EEESN - AAF
2R AR REEAR R BR R RE R
REBE_ZTELF+_A=1+—HILFEM
BRI REARRESAEBK
BAR B ME A AR 2 B AR
Er (BREER) WERAE  TEEE  ®
5 2 BB+ \BRA T 2 F X HE A (R A
ABBARR B Z BHFAITRAMZFRER -

FERR

RZZEHF+_A=+—8 UTALTQE

FARREFARRBTRABR)RARBZE

LHXEP%EEETF B METEIEDIZEXV BE 2
N30 EZ GEXAMARRRIWE - HALAR

NEMRIERE I R IR R 52 33617 B 2 Ak
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Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company):

FE (RATEREEO.10B T T mAR)

Percentage of the

Number of issued share capital

issued ordinary of the Company as at

shares/underlying 31 December 2007

shares held R-ZBZLFE+=A

Name of shareholder Capacity g RTEER,/ =+ —RAZEERLAT

RERZE =27 HEROEA ERTREAZEDE

Swift Joy Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 402,000,000 40.52%

AR ERAR AT EREAA
Right Grand Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 180,000,000 18.15%
ERERERAE] ERBEAA

Aria Investment Partners I, L.P. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
NRER (st 1)

Calyon Capital Markets Asia B.V. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
NElER (Hr:E1)

Calyon Capital Markets Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
International SA DA (1)

Calyon S.A. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
NEER (Hyz1)

CLSA Capital Partners Limited Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
NRER (Hrst1)

CLSAB.V. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
DAl (Hri1)

CLSA Private Equity Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%
Management Limited NAER (Hez1)

Credit Agricole S.A. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.38%

REEL

(He1)
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Name of shareholder

BRRES

Neng Liang Limited

SAS Rue la Boetie

Baring Asset Management Limited

FEEEERARRAA

Northern Trust Fiduciary
Services (Ireland) Limited

Ma Jie

Ma Yuk Sang
BE4E

Zheng Wei
(]

Zheng Zhen Jian
AR

X

[=]

Capacity
27

Beneficial owner
EnlEBA

Corporate interest
NEER

Investment manager
REKE

Trustee (other than a bare trustee)

REEA (WIREIRIFREEA)

A party to an agreement under
s317 of the SFO

RIEE R MR RDIE 317 &
FIM ) —IAGRERT RS

Beneficial owner (Long)
ERBEBA(FR)
Beneficial owner (Short)

EalAA(KER)

A party to an agreement under
s317 of the SFO

REBH LG GOE7 5
SR —IBH R A

A party to an agreement under
s317 of the SFO

RIEE 7 LG RAIE 317 1§
S — TR ERT A

Number of

issued ordinary
shares/underlying
shares held
FrsERTEER
HEROHE

93,001,246 (Note 1)
(HraE1)

93,001,246 (Note 1)
(Het1)

88,844,000

60,082,000

60,000,000 (Note 2)
(Hrat2)

60,000,000 (Note 2)
(He2)
60,000,000 (Note 2)
(Hizt2)

60,000,000 (Note 2)
(Hez2)

60,000,000 (Note 2)
(Hzt2)

Percentage of the
issued share capital

of the Company as at

31 December 2007

R=ZELE+=A

=+—AZEAAT

ERITRFAZEDLL

9.38%

9.38%

8.96%

6.06%

6.05%

6.05%

6.05%

6.05%

6.05%
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Note 1:

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed with the Stock Exchange,
SAS Rue la Boetie has 33.3% control over Credit Agricole S.A., which in
turn has 33.3% control over Calyon S.A., which in turn has 33.3% control
over Calyon Capital Markets International SA, which in turn has 33.3%
control over Calyon Capital Markets Asia B.V., which in turn has 33.3%
control over CLSA B.V., which in turn has 33.3% control over CLSA Capital
Partners Limited, which in turn has 33.3% control over CLSA Private Equity
Management Limited, which in turn has 1% control over Aria Investment
Partners II, L.P., which in turn has 33.3% control over Neng Liang Limited.
As such, each of the above entities is deemed to be interested in the
93,001,246 shares held by Neng Liang Limited under the SFO.

Note 2:  Ma Jie, Ma Yuk Sang, Zheng Wei and Zheng Zhen Jian are parties to an

agreement under section 317 of the SFO and hence are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company is
set out on page 57 to 68 of this annual report.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the total remunerations of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company has established an audit committee, a nomination
committee, a remuneration committee and an executive committee.

Mt BB ATIRA 2 Em B ER R AR - SAS
Rue la Boetie ¥t Credit Agricole S.A. % &
33.3% 24 - Credit Agricole S.A. ¥f
Calyon S.A. ¥4 33.3% 2 il -

Calyon S.A. ¥ Calyon Capital Markets
International SA %4 33.3% 2 2 Hll# -
Calyon Capital Markets International SA
¥t Calyon Capital Markets Asia B.V. &
33.3% Z 1% ll# - Calyon Capital Markets
Asia B.V. ¥ CLSA B.V.#% 33.3% 2
e - CLSA B.V. ¥f CLSA Capital
Partners Limited #75 33.3% < £ %4 -
CLSA Capital Partners Limited ¥ CLSA
Private Equity Management Limited # &
33.3% Z 1% 1l|# + CLSA Private Equity
Management Limited ¥ Aria Investment
Partners I, L.P. %5 1% 2 £ %% - Aria
Investment Partners Il, L.P. ¥ Neng Liang
Limited #75 33.3% 2 1% %IH%E 5]l AN
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to review the
material investment, capital operation and material financial system of the
Company, to review the accounting policy, financial position and financial
reporting procedures of the Company, to communicate with the external
audit firm, to assess the performance of internal financial and audit
personnel, and to assess the internal control of the Company. At present,
the audit committee of the Company consists of four members who are
Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and
Mr. Ho Man.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee are mainly to study and formulate the criteria of selection and
the remuneration policy of the Directors and the senior management

of the Company, to review candidates for the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, and to review the human resources
development and the utilisation policy of the Company. At present, the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee each consists
of three members who are Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng and Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the executive committee are mainly to review

and formulate the strategic positioning and development plans of the
Company, to review and formulate strategies for market development
and operation, to monitor operational and financial performance of assets
and control risks, and to review the strategies of the Company on its

material projects, business expansion, asset restructuring and operations.

At present, the executive committee of the Company consists of thirteen
members who are Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr.

Li Hui Qiu, Mr. Yeung Mun Tai, Mr. Jiang Zhi Cheng, Mr. Pan Liang Chun,

Ms. Zheng Na, Mr. Zhou Xuan Xiang, Mr. Feng Ming Jhu, Mr. Huang
Sheng Fen, Ms. Huang Yan and Mr. Qiu Jun Ming.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.

BREES
ERZEENIZRERBEARRERE
BIER - AREEMEAMBHE - FEX
AIEEHHCR ~ MO TS R RIZ T -
ESNBIZ BN RIAE ¢ AR BB S AR
ABBTHERR  ARHEARRRIAEE
T BRl ARAERZBEEHOEKE (D
RIRAEERLE  FRURSEE TEERE
AT ) 4K

REZEERFMEES

REZBENFHEEEN I ZRE RN
MEFTARREENEREIRA BNEREER
ENMMESIE  BERRREENSRER
BIREALEERNRANERFENFA
B - BAl - REZESNFMEESH=
FRE (DRI EEE - mBEREMTRR
ABIAE) HERK

HTEES
HTEBENEEMARFENHTALT
BESH R AR E  BEANH TS0

TMEL RS BEREEMMEREA - 125
R FEARBEANEAR - EHHA &
EEAMKERR - BAl - ARRIITESR
EHT=BKE (DRIRITERELE - HEE
£ BRI C FEEL  BRERL
£ OTERSEE BRESE B L -
SRR L  BRMELE BESKRE '
AT MEPERRSE L) HBRK ©

BrRBEERE
BEMSRSRIT AL BRI E TR
BRH) - BAARLMBEN R EREME
SERBEE -



Directors’ Report
EEERE

-

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five and the largest customers of the Group, represent
approximately 25% and 8% of the Group’s total sales of the year

respectively.

The top five and the largest suppliers of the Group represent
approximately 33% and 10% of the Group’s total purchases of the year
respectively.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associates of Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company) has equity
interests in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 12 December 2007, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “CLT Agreement”) with Mr. Ma Yuk Sang (the “Vendor”)
for the acquisition of Chaolitong Technology Company Limited (“CLTT”)
and the principal operating assets of Chaolitong Electronics Company
Limited (“CLTE”) through Joint Smart Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”),
a company indirectly held by the Company as to 70% and by the Vendor
as 1o 30%. As a result of the Vendor’s interest in the Purchaser, this
acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company. The
aggregate consideration for this transaction is up to approximately
RMB245 million depending on fulfilment of profit targets. The purposes of
this transaction, amongst others, are to consolidate the Group’s market
share by acquiring the principal operating assets of one of the Group’s
major competitor, as well as complementing the Group’s existing sales
network in the PRC. Further details on this transaction are set out in the
Company’s circular to Shareholders dated 11 January 2008.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the connected transaction and continuing connected transactions set
out herein and in in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, and
have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2007, such
transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(8) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Continuing connected transactions

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December 2006, the
Stock Exchange has granted the Company a waiver from compliance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the land lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) with Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Stock”) dated

20 June 2004, which has been entered into for the purpose of leasing
factory premises for production use, and the purchase agreement (the
“Purchase Agreement”) with Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Electronics”) and Fuijian Youtong Enterprises Limited (“Fujian Youtong”)
dated 1 August 2006 for the purpose of having a steady source of raw
materials and plastic moulds at a reasonable price.

The name of and the relationship with connected companies are as

follows:

Name Relationship
21 B

Mr Fang Jin Director

Pk vt =

Mr Lin Chao Director
MBS A 5%

Mr Guo Quan Zeng Director
SRIBEE s
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Name Relationship
=B RS

A wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin
and Mr. Lin Chao being common directors

HEEERMBEERHKAZEFNARREEZENBEARR]

Scud Electronics

REMRE

Fujian Youtong A company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao being common directors

rENkRA FEEERMBEERLRERTHAR
Scud Stock A company with Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng
FREBRAR D Being common directors and shareholders

TEEE  MBEERPRIEEERAAETNARAHEZENBE AR

Scud Electronics and Scud Stock has also entered into a separate lease
agreement (the “New Lease Agreement”) dated 15 November 2007

for the lease of office premises for administrative use for the Group.
Further details of the New Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 November 2007.

The details on annual caps and actual amount incurred for the above
continuing connected transactions for 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

Lease Agreement HEWE
New Lease Agreement RS
Purchase Agreement HiEHa

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the transactions referred in the section “Connected Transactions”

above, no Directors has direct or indirect material interests in any material
contracts entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries at any
time during the year.

REBRETERERBEO THEERAE
EEAKBTRARIIVARR—TTLF
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FNFE LRAERSBOFBOT ¢

Actual amount Annual cap
incurred for the year
for the year ended ending

31 December 2007 31 December 2008

BE-ZTZTtH BE-_ZTENE
+=—A=+—H1t +=—A=+—H1it
FENERLHE FENFELR
(RMB) (RMB)

(AREE) (AREE)
2,698,000 2,700,000
172,000 1,400,000
14,503,000 22,100,000
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2007.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company
considers such directors to be independent in accordance with each and
every guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of subsequent event occurred after the balance sheet date are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

Since the incorporation of the Company, its consolidated financial
statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until its
resignation with effect from 10 December 2007. Effective from 21
December 2007, Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants has

been appointed as the new auditors of the Company. A resolution will be
proposed regarding the reappointment of Moore Stephens Certified Public
Accountants as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By the order of the Board
FANG JIN
Chairman

17 March 2008

BE - HEIWEES

REBE-_TT+F T -_A=T—HILFE ' K

RAGEBE - HESMEETR EHES -
FERREMIE

ARABDWEIS B IFMITERNFERL
MERERKM - NARIRA - RIFELEHRAE
BABRATIINE RSS! - BRESEREILA
+ .

E%A%h&*$
RISA DR DRSSO AR RIS -
%ﬁﬁ%aﬁ'$@iaﬁﬁtﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
T IR HBAT -

lln§ E é$IE
REEBREEZERBEFMABNGEY
TEHREKMEESS ©

B BLEm
BANRRIEEMMAILE - A MEHRERIT A
?ﬁéb BERTGMTEZ  EERHE—
ZLFET AT RERE - -TTLF
—1— AZ+—Hi - FeEgtanEgmE
RERRRRIFZEED - KARBHRERE
BRRBFRE LIREEETHESENER
P ARZN D R EREM 2 R R

EEEEW
FE
ZE

“FEN\F=A+LA



Corporate Governance Report

AN e S/t
JJ:%'_\_'/IZI =

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of

corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and improves
our corporate governance and internal controls practices. Set out below

are the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the Company

during the financial year under review.

DISTINCT ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”)

During the period from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007, Mr. Fang
Jin served as the Chairman of the Board and was responsible for leading
the Board in establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies
and plans to create values for shareholders. Mr. Guo Quan Zeng served
as the President of the Group and was responsible for managing the
overall business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the
Board and the effective implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board, effectively carrying out the role of a CEQ.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2007, there were eight members on the Board,

which are the Chairman, the three other Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director (“NED”) and three Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs”).

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board considered
that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and
its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the Group
nor has any relationship with other directors. Each of the INEDs confirmed
their respective independences to the Group.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships in the Company, there are no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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The Board met regularly during the year on an ad hoc basis as required
by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and review

the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee the
achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’ value. Daily
operational decisions are delegated to the Executive Directors and the
senior management. The Board met 7 times during the year 2007 and the
Directors’ attendance is shown in the table on page 63. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group during the year. Each of the Directors retired and was re-
elected during the year.

Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng will retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Directors are independent from each other.

The Company appointed the NED and INEDs whose terms of
appointment shall be for one year from 3 December 2006. The new
appointment letters have not been re-executed upon expiry of the above
appointment letters to record the continual engagement of the NED and
INEDs and it is expected that new appointment letters will be signed by
the above directors upon conclusion of the 2008 annual general meeting
of the Company to record the same and confirm their appointments from
the expiry of the above appointment letters up to and including the date of
the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference as suggested under the Code of Best
Practice set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and adopted with
reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian
Zhang and Mr. Ho Man, a majority of whom are INEDs. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng. Each member can bring to
the Committee his valuable experience in reviewing financial statements
and evaluating significant control and financial issues of the Group who
among themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession or commercial sectors. The Audit Committee was
established in 3 December 2006 and has held 2 meetings during the year
2007.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the Group
before they are submitted to the Board for approval;
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(i)

v)

(vi)

(vil)

EJ

/H

to make recommendations to the Board on, the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practice;

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;
and

to review the terms and conditions of connected transactions of the
Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has carried out the
following:

(a)

(b)

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee met with the Chief financial officer and other
senior management of the Group to review the interim report and
annual report of the Group prior to recommending the financial
statements to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee has
considered and discussed the reports with the management, the
Group’s internal department and external auditors, with a view of
ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
and also reviewed the terms and conditions of connected
transactions of the Group.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and resignation of the external auditors.

Based on the credentials of Moore Stephens Certified Public
Accountants (“Moore Stephens”), the Audit Committee of the
Company recommended Moore Stephens to the Board to become
the Group’s reporting accountants upon the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu.

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)
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(c) Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in meeting its

responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of internal control.

It conducted a review of the process by which the Group evaluated
its control environment and risk assessment process, and the

way in which business and control risks were managed. The Audit
Committee also discussed with the internal audit department of
the Group the work plan for their audits on the Group together with
their resource requirements to ensure the effectiveness of internal
controls in the Group’s business operations.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has not held any meeting during
the year 2007. The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Fang Jin,
Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Fang Jin. Its main duties are summarized
as follows:

(i)

(i)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
as well as a formal and transparent procedure for developing such
remuneration policies;

to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors, senior management and Non-executive Directors; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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In order to attract, retain, and motivate executives and key employees
serving the Group, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
in December 2006. Such incentive schemes enable the eligible persons
to obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus to reward the
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements and details of the 2007 share option
scheme are set out in note 31.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December, 2006 and has not held any meeting during
the year 2007. The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fang Jin,

Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The Chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Fang Jin. The Nomination Committee
selects and recommends appropriate candidates, based on his or her
prior experience and qualifications, to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and the senior management of the Group. The main duties of
the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
change;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(i)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility; and

(iv)  toreview and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company established an executive committee (“Executive
Committee”) on 3 April 2006 and had held 7 meetings during the year
2007. The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr.
Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao, Mr. Li Hui Qiu, Mr. Yeung Mun Tai, Mr. Jiang Zhi
Cheng, Mr. Pan Liang Chun, Ms. Zheng Na, Mr. Zhou Xuan Xiang, Mr.
Feng Ming Jhu, Mr. Huang Sheng Fen, Ms. Huang Yan and Mr. Qiu Jun
Ming. The Chairman of the Executive Committee is Mr. Guo Quan Zeng.
Its duties include mainly the following:

0} recommending objectives and strategy for the Group in the
development of its business, having regard to the interests of its
shareholders, customers, employees and other stakeholders;

(ii) agreeing policy guidelines for business divisions based on approved
group strategy;

(i) ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and regulations; and

(iv)  examining all trade investments, divestments and major capital
expenditure proposals and the recommendation to the Board of
those which, in a group context, are material either by nature or
cost.

The followng table summaries the attendance of individual Director and
committee member in 2007.
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Number of meetings held during the year

Executive Directors:
Fang Jin

Lin Chao

Guo Quan Zeng

Li Hui Qiu

Non-executive Director:
Ho Man

Independent Non-executive Director:
Heng Kwoo Seng
Wang Jing Zhong
Wang Jian Zhang

Average attendance rate

LOOKING FORWARD
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The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regularly basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENCE INFORMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Meeting attended/held in 2007
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save for exceeding a cap amount in respect of certain purchases of raw
materials and moulds as a result of miscommunication (details of which
are set out in an announcement of the Company dated 2 April 2007), the
Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices (“Corporate Governance Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2007.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors (the “Code”). Having made specific enquiry, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Code.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering

the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the
Company. During the year under review, the Group is required to pay
approximately RMB1,313,000 to Moore Stephens and approximately
RMB147,000 to the PRC auditors for their audit services and
approximately RMB438,000 to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for their interim
results review services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the responsibilities of
the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on page 69 to 70.
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The continuing development and growth of the Group were benefited
from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have been dedicating
efforts to maximize the long-term value of the Company in daily operations
and seeking to maximize the mutual benefit between the Company and

the stakeholders so as to enhance a harmonious development and a
victorious collaboration in the long run.

PROTECT INVESTORS’ INTERESTS AND
ENHANCE INVESTORS’ RELATIONSHIP

Investors are the equity holders of the Company. Since our listing on the
Stock Exchange in December 2006, we devoted our resources to create
value for the shareholders to boost positive growth of the Company, to
protect the investors’ interests through various regulatory structures as
well as to establish and enhance the independent operation and effective
communication of the shareholders’ meeting, Board meeting and the
management.

We have established the Investors’ Relationship Team, which is chaired
by the Chief Financial Controller with involvement from members of the
management such as the Chairman and Directors. Its key functions
include: organizing press conference and analyst meetings in Hong Kong
and setting up one-to-one discussions for institutional investors and fund
managers during the announcement of interim reports and annual reports;
reporting to analysts the most up to date operational conditions of the
Company with a liberal attitude along with compliance with the rules and
regulations; following the pace of major business development of the
Company to release press announcements and attend media interviews
and focus on information disclosure for the Group.

PROTECT EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

We have been promoting and exercising a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis and
employment contracts were signed based on a fair and voluntary principle.
The rights and obligations of the employer and employee are defined
clearly by legal representation.

We also strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in relation
to national social insurance to set up insurance scheme for basic aged
caring, medical, injuries at work, unemployment and birth-giving for
employees and cover the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile,

to further protect the interests of individual employees, the Company
registered for a commercial accident insurance scheme for all employees.
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HARMONY AND CARE

We emphasize a harmonious relationship between employees and
encourage them to love and care each other. Most regions in China were
affected by the snow storm in early 2008. For employees who needed
assistance in their families, the Group organized an extensive voluntary
monetary and gift donation campaign among employees so as to support
the people in the disaster regions to combat against the disaster. For
employees who were affected by the snow storm and could not go home
for the festival, the Group immediately implemented a “Warm Program”:
the Group purchased a large amount flowers to decorate the factory
areas and employee’s accommodation areas so as to create a pleasant
environment for employees from other provinces who had to spend their
New Year in the factory. Free-of-charge telephone calls were provided

so that employees could check out their families and send their greetings
to them. The management and the employees spent their time together
at the Chinese New Year’s Eve party and dinner. During the dinner,

New Year’s gifts were distributed by the Company and activities such

as cultural performance and lucky draw were held to foster a festive
atmosphere.

CONTRIBUTE TO THE COMMUNITY

We are concerned about the healthy development of the community

and particularly care about education and cultural living. We launched a
donation campaign of books and magazines by employees for schools

in the area and organized the distribution to the schooal libraries. We
co-organized classes with a number of vocational technical schools to
increase the admission capacity of vocational technical schools and
enhance the students’ employment competency, and engineers were also
arranged to conduct tutorials in those schools on a regular basis. This not
only provides trainings to the future talents for the corporation but also
conveys a safety production awareness among the community so as to
raise the quality of the community.

ENHANCE OCCUPATIONAL SKILLS AND
NURTURE CIVIL QUALITIES

We offer on-the-job training to employees so as to enhance their
occupational skills and continual learning so as to fully deploy their
potential which is valid lifelong. Besides, we focused on the nurture of
civil qualities. Through various promotions and education, we enhance
the employees’ knowledge in professional ethics, manners, hygiene and
disease prevention and fire fighting and rescue so that employees will be
able to utilize what they have learnt in real practice and promote an all-
rounded development for every individual.
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EMPHASIZE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

We established the Safety and Hygiene Management Committee and
adopted various measures to protect the well-being of our employees.
For chemicals in the workshop, we set out relevant regulations regarding
pollution-free disposal treatment and conduct weekly examination to
ensure the implementation of the corresponding regulations. Also, we
focus on monitoring and protecting employees’ health and carry out
inspection in hazardous operating grounds. Employees are arranged

to take part in checkups so as to prevent and eliminate occupational
hazards.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The major production process of the Group involves the purchase and
processing of the core component of batteries (“bare battery cell”) and
selling of the product in the market or the provision of OEM services.
According to the relevant standards set out by the State Environmental
Protection Administration, the Group is not categorized as polluting
industry. However, being a member of the community, the Group puts
emphasis in supporting environmental protection by means of strict
control in the production procedures and reduce waste generation to the
largest extent. The small amount of waste generated during the packaging
process is sorted and the recyclable portions are delivered to qualified
recycling plants for treatment.

PRODUCT SAFETY: COMMITMENT TO
CONSUMERS

No accidents have been reported up till the date of this report and we are
honoured with various nationwide titles and receive high satisfactory level
graded by our consumers, thanks to our hard work over the years. But at
the same time, we constantly remind ourselves to stay alert and regard
consumer safety as our prime mission.

Our suppliers are manufacturers in the industry who are also implementing
strict quality control such as ISO. Regarding their supplies, the Group has
set out rigorous inspection standard to meet the safety requirement. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests including crash,
high-temperature, dampen and long-period recharging on our product.
We also invest resources in product R&D to development more reliable
products.
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In June 2007, SCUD’s product testing laboratory located in Fuzhou

Industrial Park obtained recognition from the China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS) as the only battery producers
among the 2400 recognized testing and approval laboratories in the PRC.

SCUD is always highly attentive to the quality and safety of their products
and emphasizes the quality control during the production process. In
February last year, we launched the concept of “safe batteries” and
applied “double safety devices” to our mobile phone rechargeable
batteries.

In December 2007, the “SCUD FREMR ” brand’s Li-ion battery was
awarded a Certificate of Exemption from Government Inspection by the
General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine
of PRC. The Group is the first and only domestic producer of Li-ion
batteries that has been awarded such Certificate of Exemption, proving
that the products of the Group have passed the stringent requirements on
quality control and safety set by relevant government authorities.

In 2006, we took the initiative to initiate the national standard of notebook
computer batteries and took part in drafting the “Regulations on the Use
of Power Sources of Portable Computers” with the Ministry of Information
Industry. The documents set out the basic requirements on the standard
of the level of safety, reliability, environmental adaptability and quality
control of notebook computer batteries.
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Independent Auditors’
BN EE RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 71 to 147, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial

statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Report

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2

30 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui
Kowloon w
Hong Kong ==
="
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 e
Fax : (852) 2375 3828 E
E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk BEt
www.ms.com.hk it Rifi
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and

of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
17 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
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Year ended 31 December 2007 BE-ZZZT+F+_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EZtF ZEERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARET T ARBTFT
Turnover =20 4 960,921 936,305
Cost of sales SHE A (717,412) (695,825)
Gross profit EF 243,509 240,480
Other revenue Hhias 5 28,718 24,535
Selling and distribution expenses $HE KD tERk A (29,116) (15,6293)
Administrative expenses 1TERFESZ (59,700) (55,268)
Other operating expenses HEA RS (393) -
Convertible bonds issue expenses AR ESFEITRZ - (2,240)
Change in fair value of convertible BRATES AR
bonds designated as at fair value AMRES AT EE
through profit or loss - (8,495)
Profit from operations REEA 6 183,018 183,389
Losses from fire NSHRR 9 (164,581) -
Finance costs REE R AR 10 (2,491) (8,487)
Profit before taxation R A1 52 F 15,946 174,902
Taxation iiE 11 (429) (14,711)
Profit for the year REERF 15,517 160,191
Attributable to: AT FELS -
Equity holders of the Company VIN/NETL - Ex =Y SN 15,513 160,191
Minority interests DERR R 4 =
15,517 160,191
Dividends BRE 12 37,789 30,744
Earnings per share BREF
- basic (RMB cents) —HEAR (AR 13 1.58 26.35
— diluted (RMB cents) — 58 (AR 13 1.58 24.93
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31 December 2007 H-ZZT+HE+-A=+—H

2007 2006
—EZEHF —ETRF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt AR®TT ARETIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R R 14 168,195 79,487
Prepaid lease payments — non-current TR ERIE - EREH S
portion 15 12,243 12,131
Intangible assets B EAE 16 3,109 1,807
Deferred tax assets IR IEE B 17 1,675 1,675
Deposit for purchases of property, plant BEYE  BEK
and equipment RENIES - 657
185,222 95,757
Current assets RENEE
Due from a related party e B A T 5KIA 18 1,126 960
Inventories FE 19 149,114 94,908
Trade and notes receivables e B S 508 K IR R IR 20 191,499 227,573
Prepaid lease payments — current FENEERE R8N
portion 15 258 251
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - ReE Rk
receivables H b e FRIE 21 125,590 126,408
Current tax recoverable A U o] B EAFS T8 2,403 =
Pledged bank deposits EIIRRITIF R 22 29,375 124,045
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRE S 23 468,483 486,937
967,848 1,061,082
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to related parties FERI B RRE A 308 24 - 2,354
Trade and notes payables BB S5 R ERNRE 25 133,408 94,801
Provision for warranty EnREEES 26 2,225 2,572
Other payables, receipt in advance and HAbFERFIE - TRUGRIE
accrued charges KIEstE R 27 30,735 62,238
Bank loans — current portion RITER—RBHD 28 13,444 76,362
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 - 78,410
Current tax payable FERHIIE - 2,973
179,812 319,710
Net current assets mENEEFE 788,036 741,372
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMBAE 973,258 837,129
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31 December 2007 W-_ZZE+F+-A=+—8

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR%T T AREEFIT
Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital A& 30 99,503 86,404
Reserves (] 872,876 749,319
Equity attributable to RATERFEA
equity holders of the Company FEfhfEs 972,289 835,723
Miniority interests DERRES 7 =
Total equity RS 972,296 835,723
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank loans — non-current portion RITER—FERB B 28 962 1,406
Total equity and non-current liabilites ~ #EXERFRBEE 973,258 837,129

&5 R

FANG JIN LIN CHAO
ki3 M
Director Director

EF EF
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RORRBBR

n,
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE—ZEZT+HF+-A=+—HIFEZ
Attrbutable fo
Statutory  Enterprise Convertidle ~ Share equity holders
Share Shae  Capital  reseve  expansion  Translafion bonds option Accumulated ofthe  Minority
captal  premum  resene fund fd  reseve  reseve  resenve  profits  Company interests Total
yid iz TER  BRE KDEREE  DHER
Bx  BEEE gAEE 0B $REE  ENEE  ERER B ZEN BARKR B &t
RMBOOO  RMB0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO  RMBOO0  RMB00  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBUOO0
AE#Tn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
1 January 2006 H-E575-5- 46 1008 U 127 406 - - M -
Eichence dfences aisngon ERTERRTS)
rnsiaion oforeig subsideres HEAEEHE
ety econised ety ELHERER - - - (7] - - - 0] - (3]
Proft forthe year KERRT - - - - - B TN 31 N
Totreoogrisetnoomefor teyeer RERRINASE - - - - - -0 1T -
I of shres n Group egenisaion SESARERR (401 k] - - - - - 0] - 0]
Isugofhares by pcig and HERERAFRERR
ublc g <) piT/ ] - - - - - 5 - I
Bpenses reuredincomefon vt REEARAMNRL
teisseofsaes - = = = . - P -
Sraes sued on captelsaionisse B RERG w0 @ - - - - - - -
Reooqpion f ety comporertof ke
convertol bonds Tt = = = 11015 - - 1015 - 1015
Reoogronofequiy-seed i)
sharebased payments B - - - - 1] - 17 - 17
Tranfers £ - 18725 932 - - (e - - -
Diidencs pad Effke - - - - - o g - Py
31 December 2006 RoSBAETZRZT-R %44 40689 132889 819 269 1015 m 1B 88 - BB
Eichenge cfences g on BREERRDS))
trenaonof v stbsidees BRI S
diectyreooied neauly BhifE] 2R - - - (9 - - - (g1 - (91
Proft forthe year KERRT - - - - - N 7 4 T
Totlreoogrised poense oomerorreyenr— FEFRRA(FR) WAL = - - - 910 - - B ) T
Isug ofsheres by overalofment HERRERRA B % - - - - - - B - B
Diencs ped BfiRE - (fi9m) - - - - - (f9m) - (fiem)
Benses reuredincomefon vt RBEARAMNRL
telssug of shares - 8% - - - - - - 28%) - 8%
Captlsaon sse of SCUD Bectronics RERBTHEAMAS - - B - - - 338 - - -
Conversion of convertble oncs AETERES 91 To89 - - (11019 - - T8 - TR
Approprdors b1y = 6724 332 - - (i00e -
Recogrtonofequiy-seed TeliERE 205
staresed pamens mﬁ - - - -5 5812 - B0
Moty st aisg fom HiE-EEATE
acqistionof asubsitay ) alkRER - - - - - 3 3
31 December 2007 RoZBLETZAZT-R VA8 AN 1825 K08 AN (1914 1 A< | T o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE —ZZ+F+_-A=+—HILFE

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) applicable to foreign investment enterprises and the Articles
of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain three statutory reserves, namely a
statutory reserve fund, an enterprise expansion fund and a staff welfare and
incentive bonus fund which are non-distributable. Scud (Fujian) Electronics
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud (Fujian) Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”) and Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”) are
required to transfer 10% of their respective profit after taxation as reported
in the PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund until
the balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Scud Electronics, Scud
Battery and Scud Shenzhen, they are also required to make appropriation
from their respective profit after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory
financial statements to the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined
by their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserve fund may be
used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with the approval from
the relevant government authorities, to increase capital for expansion

of production of Scud Electronics, Scud Battery and Scud Shenzhen.
The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval by the relevant
government authorities, may also be used to increase capital of Scud
Electronics, Scud Battery and Scud Shenzhen.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the aggregate
amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus the consideration
received by the Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation in
preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE—ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—ETLF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBRERERE
Profit before taxation BB A A 15,946 174,902
Adjustments for: ARIER :
Losses from fire D% ES 164,581 -
Amortisation of intangible assets A 247 179
Interest income FLEHA (12,493) (12,078)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds BRATEEGFA
designated as fair value through Ba 2 R ES
profit and loss ZNFEEH - 8,495
Depreciation e 21,383 14,269
Equity-settled share-based payments S 2 ARMD S N50E 5,812 175
Finance costs BEKRA 2,491 8,487
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE&XE
plant and equipment EEEE 953 -
Impairment loss on property, W% - BB KREE
plant and equipment ZREEE - 526
Write-off of intangible assets B EEME - 284
Write-off of receivables FEUCGRIE R R - 1,995
Operating lease rental in respect of BRABENEEHIEN
prepaid lease payments wEfe 257 146
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts R 318 650
(Release of provision)/provision for warranty EmREERS (BERR), FiE (347) 966
Listing expenses EmREZ - 7,699
Gain on disposal of short term investment HERERERE (7,663) -
Operating profit before changes Rt e ES BRI
in working capital AR 191,485 206,695
Increase in amount due from a related party e BEE A T SRIRE N (166) (960)
Increase in inventories FEEM (54,206) (31,657)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and notes receivables U E 5518 k FEWEZ iR/ (12 10) 36,371 (65,027)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits BNFUE - e REA
and other receivables FEMRIER D, (3E10) 346 (80,198)
Increase in trade and notes payables eI B 2 30E R B AR 38,607 58,603
Decrease in other payables, receipt in advance  EAfER5AIE « BRI FIBR
and accrued charges e & AR (31,503) (17,709)
Cash generated from operations RELEEBORS 180,934 69,747
Interest paid BRFE (2,491) (5,029)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BHPENEREH (5,805) (14,074)
Provision on reconstruction costs of rented EANBEHHEYER
premises being damaged in the fire SR AEE (8,285) -
Losses on inventory FERBRX (199,394) =
Receipts from sale of scrap materials damaged i E& EBRANRIBIEI TS RIE 1,066 =
Compensation received from the insurers A NG9 GOl = 52,490 -
Net cash generated from operating activities X H&&EZBNHEL FE 18,515 50,644




.

Consolidated Gash Flow Statement
GERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-—ZZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
“ETLF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNREE
Payments to acquire short term investment BARBRIEEFIE (98,500) =
Receipts from disposal of short term investment & 48 iR B TS 208 106,163 =
Interest received B U 2 12,493 12,078
Payment of lease premiums HEREIE (376) (12,528)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits EEARITEIRD, (8 n) 94,670 (121,167)
Decrease in promissory notes A HEERR D - 406
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEME  BERRETIE
equipment (120,995) (19,274)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BABFEERE (1,549) (1,654)
Deposits paid for property, plant and equipment ~ BEME - MR MRERNIZS - (657)
Net cash used in investing activities ARBREZBNESFHE (8,094) (142,796)
Cash flows from financing activities REBETHNHEERE
Share capital paid by a minority interest DRI 3 =
Dividends paid ERRRE (19,211) (30,744)
Decrease in dividend payable ERRERD - (787)
New bank loans FERITER 13,000 177,756
(Repayment to)/advance from related parties RARBEAL(ER),/ B3 (2,354) 728
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BITAIMRES FTS50R - 78,161
Proceeds from issue of shares BT ETE R 78,480 527,673
Repayment of bank loans BEIBITER (76,362) (178,468)
Share issue expenses BITRHAE (2,896) (9,641)
Net cash (used in)/generated (AR)/REREZBH
from financing activities R&FE (9,340) 564,678
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEEPEM 1,081 472,526
Cash and cash equivalents at FIREeRFALEEER
beginning of year 486,937 14,817
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EReFHNTE (19,535) (406)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRASRALEEER 468,483 486,937
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BeRkAEEEEERIN
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR N 468,483 486,937
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GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares have been listed on the Mainboard of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 21 December
2006. The addresses of the registered office and principal places of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate data section
on page 4.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of rechargeable battery packs and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebook computers, digital cameras and other electrical
appliances.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Under a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure

of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
(the “Group Reorganisation”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Company became the holding company of the Group on
31 July 2006.

The Group resulting from the aforementioned Group Reorganisation
is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 have
been prepared using the principles of merger accounting as if the
group structure after the completion of the Group Reorganisation had
been in existence throughout the year.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007 have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The principal accounting policies and methods of
computation used in the preparation of the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2007 are consistent with those
adopted in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2006, except for the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs as
explained in note 3 b) below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (the “IFRIC”) of the IASB.

Adoption of new and revised International

Financial Reporting Standards
During the current year, the Group has adopted the following

amendment to IFRSs, new standard and interpretations which
are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1
January 2007:

IAS 1 (Amendment)  Presentation of financial statements

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes to IAS 1
has been to expand the disclosures provided in these financial
statements regarding the Group’s financial instruments and
management of capital (see note 37 below).

The adoption of the other interpretations has had no material
impact on the accounting policies of the Group and the
methods of computation in the Group’s financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

Judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

IFRSs requires the directors to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies

and estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities are as follows:

i) Investments held-to-maturity
The Group follows the IAS 39 guidance on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgment. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than
for specific circumstances explained in IAS 39, it will be
required to reclassify the whole class as available-for-
sale. The investments would therefore be measured at
fair value not amortised cost.

c)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTEXR®
(Continued)
c) Judgments and estimates (Continued) c) HETRMEH#E)
ii)  Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and i) YE BERREZIE

equipment FEHRITE
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and REBEBEEYE  HER
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and SR 2 (T AT R AR A HA LA
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical KABRATTERX - 25
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant TR I KR IhREARiT
and equipment of similar nature and functions. The ZWE - EERREER
Group will increase the depreciation charge where Al A 2 BT

useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
and will write off or write down technically obsolete

or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation charges in
future periods.

iij)  Net realisable value of inventories iif)
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to any industry downturn. The
directors reassess the estimations at each balance sheet
date.

iv)  Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables iv)
The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is
based on the credit history of the customers and other
debtors and the current market condition. The directors
reassess the allowance at each balance sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

d)

e)

Judgments and estimates (Continued)

v) Warranty claims
The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well as
parts and labour costs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up

to 31 December 2007. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies used into line with those used by the
Group.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. A
subsidiary is considered to be controlled if the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Impairment of assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying

amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,

the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where

it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and value

in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as

an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is land or
buildings (other than investment property) carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in

progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment

(an “Item”) comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the Item to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the Item has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted

in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the Item, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the Item.

When, in the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment are below their carrying
amounts, provisions are made to write down the carrying
amounts of such assets to their recoverable amounts. (see also
note 3e) above)

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an Item
recognised in the income statement is the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant ltem,
and is recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets on
the straight-line method, based on the estimated economic
useful lives of the individual assets, after taking into account
their estimated residual value, if any, at the following rates per
annum:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f)  Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation

on these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

g) Leased assets

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

Group are classified as operating leases.

ii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,

except where an alternative basis is more representative

of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals, if any,
are charged to the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

h)

)

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of land use rights is amortised to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period for which the
relevant land use right has been granted.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. After initial

recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its
continued use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an intangible asset shall be determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the asset. It shall be recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

i) an asset is created that can be identified;

ii) it is probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

)] the development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet when a Group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Trade and note receivables, other receivables and deposits
and amounts due from related parties and bank balances
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
measured at initial recognition at fair value, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income statement
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In terms of trade receivables, for example, a provision for
impairment is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original trade terms. Significant financial
difficulties of debtors, such as the probability that debtors will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivables are impaired.

The allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The allowance

is reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the allowance was recognised, subject to
a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the allowance is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the allowance not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds designated as at fair value through
profit and loss

Convertible bonds comprised of the host debt
instrument and the embedded derivatives issued by

the Group are designated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, the
entire convertible bonds are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the convertible bonds designed as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Convertible bonds with liability and equity components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. A conversion option which will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments, is an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar nonconvertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEESTHHEER®

(Continued)
I) Financial instruments (Continued) ) BBEIA:

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) HBEEERKK (E)

)] Convertible bonds (Continued) i IR E S ()
Convertible bonds with liability and equity components B ERRESD 2
(Continued) }ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ (#)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the KRR - AT ES
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using R EEID THERAERF
the effective interest method. The equity component, SOEBEERL AT BR © BRAR
represented by the option to convert the liability o E'D—HHE &6
component into ordinary shares of the Group, will remain D AR BT R R
in convertible bonds equity reserve until the conversion EAREAS IR B A AT R Nk (B 4
option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in AR R - BN
convertible bonds reserve will be transferred to share AR BRI TR A U
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at FUBERT » AR ES
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds AR AN R Y A BRI 8
reserve will be released to the accumulated profits. No BERAERRE - W5
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement upon FERRIEA B AR EITE - A
conversion or expiration of the option. MR EFBAE R L
AR E Rt RA o BRRE
HARSKEIHAR ST e A e
AP RERIE (R RS o
For modification of terms being accounted for MIERUB 2 IR /7
as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred H - FTEEZ KA E R
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the RABUHZ B Ebn - Wit
extinguishment and charged to the income statement. Wem =05 o

i) Other financial liabilities i) BAMHBEE
Trade and notes payables, other payables, amounts BRNESHRIEREE - Hfth
due to related parties, dividend payables and bank loans FERFRIE - BN EREAL
are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently RFIE » BRI E MIRTTE
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest RO RATENE - Hig
method. TREE SRR AN A BRI B0E

E
i)  Equity instruments i)  RAETA

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received or any new asset obtained and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
including other liabilities assumed is recognised in consolidated
income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

m)

0)

Provisions (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated

at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Chinese
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Chinese Renminbi at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income

statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible.

m)

n)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

p)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and

is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected

to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as follows:-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

i)

ii)

iii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, which means that all
the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding
and the interest rates applicable.

Processing income
Processing income is recognised when processing
services are provided.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Q)

Government grants
Government grants in the form of incentive payments are

recognised as income and reported separately as “other
income” when the government’s approval of grant is
unconditional.

Government grants related to new products research costs
are recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the related costs and
deducted in reporting the related expenses.

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

if)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and contributions to the retirement
schemes operated by the relevant authorities for
employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are recognised as an expense in the
income statement as incurred, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

r

s)

t)

Employee benefits (Continued)
iv)  Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of services received, determined by
reference to the fair value of shares options granted

to the employees at the grant date, is expensed on

a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still

not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection

with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs are charged to the
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition, less advances from
banks repayable within three months from the date of the
advance. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

i)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control or
common significant influence;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in i) or ii);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in ii) or iii); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is
a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that

is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include property, plant
and equipment, inventories and trade receivables. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be
used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and
financing expenses.

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

a)

b)

Turnover
Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and

trade discounts.

Business segments
The Group’s business comprises two segments, namely,

own-brand business and original equipment manufacturer
(“OEM”) business. The directors of the Company regard these
segments as the primary source of the Group’s risks and
returns.

Segment information about these businesses is presented as
follows:
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4.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. 2 ¥ZEKoEER »)
(Continued)
b) Business segments (Continued) b) X¥¥o¥E#)
Segment revenue and results SHEKNBREE
Group A5
2007 2006
“EELE ZETRE
Own-brand OEM Own-brand OEM
business  business Others Total business  business Total
BAEmE BAMmE
%% OEMEHK Hety EH) ¥%  OEMZER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETT ARETT ARETET
Turnover BET 616,022 325,185 19,714 960,921 620,132 316,173 936,305
Segment results PEEE 172,969 70,063 477 243,509 174,188 66,292 240,480
Unallocated income FOEBA 28,718 24,535
Unallocated expenses ~ AAERY (89,209) (70,891)
Change infair value of ~ RAF(EFTA
convertible bonds Bk
designated as at ARES
fair value through ATEEE)
profit and loss - (8,495)
Convertiole bonds issue  Z77A[# %
expenses EHES - (2,240)
Losses from fire NSHBE (164,581) =
Finance costs BERA (2,491) (8,487)
Profit before taxation BRE: AR A 15,946 174,902
Taxation o (429) (14,711)
Profit for the year KEFREF 15,517 160,191
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. & XBER7¥EER @)

(Continued)
b) Business segments (Continued) b) ¥¥sE#)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Group &5
2007 2006
“BERLE “ETNE
Own-brand OEM Own-brand OEM
business  business Others Total business  business Total
BERE BAmiE
¥£% OEMEXK Htth a5t %% OEMER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR¥TR AR¥Tr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Segment assets NEEE 251,666 140,618 - 302284 144943 149467 294,410
Unallocated corporate assets A2 ELA A& E 760,786 862,429
Consolidated total assets ~ fFAMEE 1,153,070 1,156,839

Unallocated corporate AR R AFIERE
liabiliies and consolidated ~ RérA 12 &

total liabilities 180,774 321,116
c) Other information c) HEHR
Group A58
2007 2006
ZEELF “ETSE
Own-brand O0EM  Assetsin Own-brand OEM  Assetsin
business  business  common Total business  business  common Total
BEmE BEmiE

¥ OEMEE  ARKE #it 5% OMEE  ARKE it
RMB'00O  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

Capital addtion BRE 79,623 10879 32556 123,058 3591 5,961 28936 38488
Depreciation of property, 1%+ BER

plant and equipment RGIE 7,280 3868 10285 21,383 3108 2662 8502 14269
(Wite-back of alowance)  (BEE&)/

allowance for RIRIRELE

bad and doubtful debts i) (296) 615 318 650 - - 650
Write-off of eceivables ~ MisEMGUR - - - - - 199 - 1,995
Impairment loss on property, 1%+ BER

plant and equipment REREER - - - - 156 370 - 52

Amortisation of intangble. £/ AE #3
assets - - 241 247 - - 179 179
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &®XZEKoBEER »)
(Continued)
c) Other information (Continued) c) HiER®)
The nature of the products, the production processes and the EmiEE - AETFNMBEDHE
method used to distribute the products to these two classes EmTZzmaEgF R EHER o
of customers are similar. The Group’s production facilities $%IE’J$E St R AT BRI
and inventories are located in the PRC. These two classes of o ZMERF AR5 &
customers utilise the Group’s resources in a similar manner. $%@E’\]ﬁfﬁ o At - RERF
Accordingly, the only separable assets are certain items of HE—r D REEAE - ME
property, plant and equipment, inventories and trade and notes KiEfE - FEREBRESHFIAR
receivables for these customers. SERMETIER °
d) Geographical segments d HESH
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as analysis e II#EE@J?%TEEFH%;U“
of the Group’s carrying amount of segment assets and BASRE SRR EEDITAR
additions to property, plant and equipment and intangibles AEEDBEERAEME K
by geographical market have not been presented as they are BERHREREEENIREESD
substantially generated from or situated in the PRC. 1 REREARIBARFEIES
AR o
5. OTHER REVENUE 5. Hftulz
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELEF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Interest income BN 12,493 12,078
Foreign exchange gain b 5 W e 6,755 3,596
Gain on disposal of SR
short term investment B WS 7,663 =
Processing income nTHA 759 4,559
Sale of scrap materials SHE R R - 2,048
Sundry income E A 1,048 2,254
28,718 24,535
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6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations is arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

— current year provision

— prior year underprovision
Amortisation

— intangible assets

— prepaid lease payments

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Cost of inventories recognized as expenses

Depreciation (net of depreciation
included in research and
development costs of
RMB2,779,000
(2006: RMB2,598,000))

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Listing expenses

Operating lease rentals
— office premises

Research and development costs
(net of government grant of
RMB1,820,000
(2006: RMB1,273,000))

Write-off of receivables

Staff costs (hote 7)

ZEEMEN &
— R E RS
—BAFERETR
e
—EREE
—FENHERE
RIZIRBE
R AR MEERA
& (BENBREERE
KRB ARRITE
AR 2,779,0007T
(ZZTREF
AER#E2,508,0007T))
L/E =Y
BEEE
lskisli 2
—RREYE

Bt 9% e PR AN (2 BRI
A AR 1,820,000 7T

(ZTTREF
AFR#1,273,0007T))
FEU R IB I AR
BITRA (f1:F7)

Group

rEE
2007
—EEtF
RMB’000
ARET R

1,701
197
247
257

318
717,412

18,604

5,266

12,473

48,477

2006
ZEERF
RMB’000
AREETTT

1,750

179
146
650
695,825

11,671

526
7,699

4,161

12,635
1,995
41,376
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7. STAFF COSTS 7. BEITHRAK

Group

rEH
2007 2006
—EEtHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT

Directors’ remuneration (note 8) EEME (H28) 898 736
Other staff costs Hh B TRA 50,775 42,672
Retirement benefits scheme Eth B THR IR
contributions ST a4 2,035 1,455
Less: Staff costs included in W BT AR KRB A
research and development costs K8 TAA (5,231) (3,487)
48,477 41,376
8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 8. EEKkEESME
REMUNERATION
a)  The information pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong (@ BBEEBREEHIZE 161 AR
Companies Ordinance is disclosed as follows: BOEROT :
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ETF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Fees He 882 34
Other emoluments: E A -
Salaries, bonus, allowance e Re  BHK
and other benefits EAfbiaF - 697
Retirement benefits scheme RINEFEEIHR
contributions 16 5

898 736
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

8. EEKEEME

b)  Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors are as b) AEERZERELZMHMSFHBD
follows: T
2007 2006
ZEELE “TTNF
Salaries, Salaries,
bonus, bonus,
allowance Retirement allowance  Retirement
and  benefits and benefits
other  scheme other scheme
benefits contri- benefits contri-
H¢ %%  butions Total £ %%  butions Total
Fees EER  EMBEH emoluments Fees ~@MER  RIMEF emoluments
e HftRR  HEAR AN Be  ERE  GEfR aEe
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT ARMTR ARSTT ARBTT ARBTT ARSTT ARETI

Fang Jin Jika - - 4 4 - 159 2 161
Lin Chao i - - 4 4 - 139 1 140
Guo Quan Zeng PR 438 - 4 442 14 260 1 275
Li Hui Qiu Zeil 211 - 4 215 6 139 1 146
Heng Kwoo Seng jiFeE 17 - - 17 4 = = 4
Wang Jing Zhong FHB 58 - - 58 5 = = 5
Wang Jian Zhang TEE 58 - - 58 5 - - 5
Ho Man feT& - - - - - - - -
Total &5t 882 - 16 898 34 697 5 736
c)  The five highest paid individuals included two directors for the c) (E=ETTLEF+A=+—H
year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: two). Details of whose IEFE  AEmaTMALTEE
emoluments are set out above. ME(ZETRF - MB)ES -

MEZMESFITRN L -

HHB=%(ZFTRF: Z8)K
SEHMAL (EEHBIN) S

The emoluments of the remaining three (2006: three) highest
paid individuals other than directors are as follows:

T
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EETLHF TETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETIT
Salaries, bonus, allowance and ¥ & - €&  EE K
other benefits H A2 1,014 1,350
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFETEI
contributions HR 22 5
1,036 1,355
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 8.
REMUNERATION (Continued)

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals other
than directors are within the following bands:

Nil to RMB936,400
(equivalent to Nil to HKD1,000,000)

T AR# 936,400 7T
(%REZZ 1,000,000 7T)

EEkEEME 2

HApREHMAL (EZRINE

BT LA T &5 E
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ETLE —EETREF
3 3

d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emolumens during both years. However, as a result
of the fire at the production plant of the Company in May 2007,
Mr. Guo Quan Zeng proposed a salary cut of 30% for himself
for one year and 10% for a half year for Mr. Li Hui Qiu effective
from August 2007.

LOSSES FROM FIRE 0.

On 31 May 2007, there was a serious fire at the Group’s production
plant in Fuzhou, the PRC. Most of the Group’s inventories were
destroyed whilst most of its production lines were unaffected.

The losses incurred as a result of the fire are summarised as follows:

d MRREFER  A£EERR
HEREHAL (BEEERES)
SAHERBE - (EARSIIAZ
EE I ARNE R SEE) - 5k
REBNIHIE - RREFE
A - RS ERETANE - B
HRANRARNEERENR_—ZZ
L ERBBENK  FPRIBELE
BRI F )\ ARREIRE
KRG —FEH]30% REZEM L4
K FHE10% ©

KKK
R-TBLEREA=+—A  AREL
R BB RS B AN » A28
EABDFHOIAR - MABD LER
REEKR -

KSGERR R IBARB AT -

Group
rEH
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Loss on inventories FEELK
Raw materials R 174,235
Work in progress F X 7,690
Finished goods ERK 17,469
199,394
Loss on property, plant and W - BB REREER
equipment 10,458
Estimated costs for reconstruction BRI ANIIER
of the rented premises being THEMZEREET
damaged in the fire AR 8,285
218,137
Less: Compensation received from B REARIRZZETLF
the insurers in November 2007 +— A EMEE (52,490)
Receipts from sales of scrap L EEBERRFRYIE
materials damaged (1,066)
Net losses BRFRE 164,581
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE R
Group
TEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
Interest on bank borrowings RITE A B 1,352 3,733
Interest on discounted notes PrIRE W IR F B
receivable (without recourse) (W dmie e ) 195 94
Effective interest on convertible AR ES 2
bonds BERRFLE 891 4,660
Other finance costs H b &R AR 53 =
2,491 8,487
TAXATION 11. BIE
No provision for taxation has been made by the Company as it BRARREZHMAS S IHM A

is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere in other
jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group’s profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong Kong
during both years, and Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company Limited
incurred a tax loss during the year.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the
estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate

of taxation applicable for the period. Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”) and Scud (Fujian) Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”) are foreign investment enterprises located in Mawei District,
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC. Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”) is a foreign investment enterprise located in
Shenzhen, PRC. Both Mawei District and Shenzhen are designated
as an Economic Development Zone. Accordingly, Scud Electronics,
Scud Battery and Scud Shenzhen are subject to an income tax rate
of 15%.

Pursuant to the PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises, Detailed Rules and Regulations
for the Implementation of PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign
Investment Enterprise and Foreign Enterprises and the approval
document #& I BIFEER[2003] 7255 and #5548 BIF B [2003] 455 issued
by Fuzhou Tax Bureau Branch on 15 May 2003 and 7 February
2007, respectively, Scud Electronics and Scud Battery are entitled
to an exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years
commencing from its first profit-making year of operation to a 50%
relief from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the next three years.

ERERATIR - ARRLEEHHIA
B -

HREMFEAREE G METIENEE
EX - TIFREEL - MREREE
(BR)ERABRNFRZEHEASE
UL I B EB M S TIE LR -

A B S FTiS R B 1 TR R A A HA A
TR = e BB I8 R R A (A 5T FE AR A
WA MYEL - RERGER)EFERA
A ([REREF]) RRER (BE)E
AR AR ([RERREM ) AR B
fREARNTEERRINERSE - RE
BRETCFRINAERAR(EYIRER])
A RPERYIFINERSE - BER R
RIEIEE RLERERE - Bt - RE
BREF - MERE M ERYIRER AR
15% HIFT1S T R AT -

RIER B INE 3 R BN SER ETS Y
% - B BINE (R BISMEERIFT
Eﬁ%m%%&m&ﬁﬂvu&EMﬁ
BARR_EE=FRA+HBER=
EgtifﬂtH%ﬁW%myﬁﬁﬁ
B0 %1 B [2003] 7255 M 44 7 B A% Bk [2003]4
5% MEREFRNREREODHELE
B A S FFE BT IR AR
AP B EATEH - UERKRR=F
=5 50% K B EAMERHER o
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

Scud Electronics started to enjoy the tax exemption from 2002 and
the tax relief from 2004. A reduced income tax rate of 7.5% therefore
applies from 2004 to 2006. During the year, Scud Electronics has
successfully extended the preferential income tax rate for three more
years and has enjoyed an effective rate of 10% for the period from
April 2007 to April 2010, both years inclusive.

Scud Battery started to enjoy the tax exemption from 2007.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law announced by the
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007, the Detailed Rules
and Regulations for the Implementation of PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law and Guofa B12% [2007] 39 5% released by the State Council
on 6 December 2007 and 26 December 2007 respectively, the tax
exemptions granted to Scud Electronics and Scud Battery prior to 1
January 2008 can be continued until their respective expiry dates.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made for

11.

BiIE )
?R%H}E% NZETFREZHREH
TH WE—STMFREAERE
AR =S FE - T T FRAE
ﬁas’m%ﬁﬁ STET7.5% ° FR » RE
BETEANBEEMEHERTER=
$ WYER=—TZ+FNAE=_ZT—F
FUA LR (BEEEMFE)NEEE
BRERE10% °

REMRE
THER, °

LR — TR FRERIGEAN

BEZEARKKAER_ZZLEF=
BTN B AR B EMmSEER -
ARBEBHE AN ZEEEF AKX
AR=ZZEZ+F+=A=+/BEMD
P B { ZE P S ?Rxﬂﬁ']aﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬂfﬁJ =
FA KR EIE [2007]395% « R=TZT/\F
— A — BRI TRERE T LRERE
MHTIBR R A AR EE S A ERA

HPORYIFRERR B AL B HA AR 4 &

Scud Shenzhen as it did not have assessable profits since its date of ERA g A v AR B E A AR B S ZE AT
establishment. 1SR
Details of the (credit)/charge in the consolidated income statement sFAGE KSR (ER ),/ HFEY
are as follows: T
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELEF —EIRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Current tax-PRC Enterprise Income Tax BEATEIE — AP Bl 2R AT1S AR
Tax for the year NEEHIE - 15,052
Underprovision in prior years AR ERETE 429 58
429 15,110
Deferred tax (Note 17) RERIE (Hrat 17)
Origination/reversal of temporary ey e Ik s Uk
differences - (899)
Taxation I8 429 14,711
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11. TAXATION (continued) 11. BB
The reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation in the REREWERA - F AR AR I E1FH
consolidated income statement is as follows: TERERIOT ¢
Group
AEE
2007 2006
—EELF BT RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARET T

Profit before taxation R 5t A A 15,946 174,092
Tax at income tax rate of 15% RS HRE15% J%imlﬁ 2,392 26,235
Tax effect of different tax rates of FEHM R EE RSB D

subsidiaries operating ORIk 0psnhs =7

in other jurisdictions 745 =
Tax effect of expenses not AR A S R S s &

deductible for tax purposes 13,597 5,338
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBM AT &

for tax purposes (8,359) (2,155)
Tax effect of temporary differences SRR MR R =R S 2

not previously recognised 1 -
Underprovision in prior years VAR FEEET R 429 58
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERTIEEIERY

recognised RIS 2 4,361 97
Effect of concessionary rate granted R BIM/B A R ERFERER

to the PRC subsidiaries M2 (12,737) (14,862)
Taxation THIE 429 14,711

12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
An interim dividend for the six-month period ended 30 June 2007 REE_TT+F+_A=+—HItF
of HK$0.02 per share, amounting to a total interim dividend of EA - EERRENEBEZEZZZLFS
approximately RMB19,211,000 was declared and paid to the R=+H1EXMEA 8 EifR 8 8% 0.02
shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2007. BTN AR 19,211,000 7T T AR
= o

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of HK$0.02 BT EF T A=+ —HIFE
per share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately KRN E BRZ0.028 LB AREE
RMB18,578,000 is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general 18,578,000 T i AN & FE & AR R 3B 5
meeting of the Company. These financial statements do not reflect ANE LIRE o ABESHRERIN AR ILIE
this dividend payable. FERTARE. ©
During the year ended 31 December 2006, dividends of RBEZZERF+A=+—RHIHF
RMB30,744,000 were declared and paid to the then shareholders ERN - BEMEEESHCERRREIR

prior to the Group recognisation. MR AR B A R #5 30,744,000 7T °
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

13. BRER

AARBREEBRELRREERFIR

attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the BUATEIETE
following data:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETIT
Earnings for the purposes of basic FTESREREFIFZEF
earnings per share (profit for the (RATEEFEE ABGEAREEHH)
year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company) 15,513 160,191
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BETEEREN T BRI E
shares (effective interest on ( BREHNERAL)
convertible bonds) - 4,660
Change in fair value of convertible B AFEF ABRIRA
bonds designated as fair value AR ES A T EEE)
through profit and loss - 8,495
15,513 173,346

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
2007 2006
—getE  —TE,
’000 000
BAF 5t LA
Weighted average number of ordinary  5tEFIAEARZEFIH
shares for the purposes of basic T I8
earnings per share 981,826 607,835
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary AB SRR Z B
shares KR 2
— convertible bonds — AR ES - 87,395
— share options — MR i 215 167
215 87,562
Weighed average number of ordinary — 5+& &% #5522 5
shares for the purposes of diluted B 38 AR N 15 8
earnings per share 982,041 695,397
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRZE
Electronic
equipment, Leasehold
furniture and Motor  Plant and Construction  improve-
fixtures  vehicles machinery Moulds in progress ments Total
EFRE BER HE
BRR%EE RE HeE BE HEIER MEER @t
RMB'0O00O  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTLE ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Group KEE
Cost KA
1 January 2006 2 5-A-H 38,757 2,065 13,615 15,102 6,364 - 75,903
Additions E 1,276 4,079 23,39 3,482 4,602 - 36,834
Transfer Er 406 = 8,060 1,500 (9,966) - -
31 December 2006 ZEERETZA=T-H 40,439 6,144 45,070 20,084 1,000 - 12737
Exchange adjustment HNEFE 9 = - - - - o)
Additions E 15,624 2,586 45,545 2,382 54,977 3% 121,509
Transfer Er 796 351 - 9,818 (11,856) 891 -
Disposals HE (7,824) (900)  (12,966) - - - (21,690)
31 December 2007 ZERHETZA=T-H 49,026 8,181 77,649 32,284 44121 1286 212,547
Depreciation i
1 January 2006 —2E5-A-H 9,487 1,263 5,457 2,298 - - 18,455
Charge for the year FRFEE 7,287 549 3,085 3,368 = = 14,269
Impairment loss recognised  ERARERE - - - 526 - = 526
31 December 2006 ZZTFTZA=T-H 16,724 1,812 8,522 6,192 - - 33250
Exchange adjustment HNEFE @ = - - - - 0
Charge for the year FRFEE 8,516 895 6,313 5,571 = 88 21,383
On disposals HE (8,377) (629) (6,279) - - - (10,279)
31 December 2007 ZZTtF+TZA=T-H 21,861 2,084 8,556 763 - 88 44,352
Net book value REFE
31 December 2007 ZZTtF+TZA=1-H 27,165 6,007 69,093 20521 44,121 1,198 168,195
31 December 2006 ZRERETZA=TH 23,715 4332 36,548 13,892 1,000 - 79487

During the current and the prior years, the Group has reviewed the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and has identified
that certain property, plant and equipment are either idle or having

no economic value to the Group. Accordingly, the carrying amount

of those identified property, plant and equipment was reduced to
their respective net realisable value. The impairment losses have
been included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income

statement.

RAFERBEFER - AEEEEH
W% - BB RREHIREE - WHEE
REXEAKETN S L ELEBENS
THEME - BERRE - Bt - &%
E%%%% ﬁ%& REHIIREI{E D 1
o BUEBRERER
AW %WJA THRHAXA °
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land
outside Hong Kong held by the Group under medium term leases, as

15. ENHEERE
AEENENBEREEARERE
R R BB AN E £ 3

follows: BT :
Group
REE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost R
1 January 2006 RZZETRFE—H—H =
Additions o 12,528
31 December 2006 RZZEZRF+=_A=+—H 12,528
Additions 4N 376
31 December 2007 RZZBELFE+—A=+—H 12,904
Amortisation N
1 January 2006 RZTEF—HA—H =
Charge for the year AEERE 146
31 December 2006 RZBEERNF+_A=+—H 146
Charge for the year REEHREZ 257
31 December 2007 RZZTZEF+=_A=+—H 403
Net carrying amount REFE
31 December 2007 RZEELF+=A=+—H 12,501
31 December 2006 R_ZEZEF+=-_A=+—H 12,382
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued) 15. EMNHEERE )

An analysis for reporting purposes is as follows: E2MAEHATAOT
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Current portion BNERER 258 251
Non-current portion JEBNEAZE 12,243 12,131
12,501 12,382
Prepaid lease payments are released to the consolidated income AEBEENEEREZAHR TFELR
statement over the term of the leases of 50 years. BRI o
The directors consider that the carrying amount of prepaid lease BER ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ FRIEMIRAEEER
payments approximates to their fair value. FEEE
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE
Software
B
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Group rEE
Cost RS
1 January 2006 —EERF—H—H 765
Additions 0 1,654
Disposals M (349)
31 December 2006 RZZZRF+_A=1+—H 2,070
Additions 0 1,549
31 December 2007 RZZEZLF+=—A=1T—H 3,619
Amortisation )
1 January 2006 —ETRF—H—H 149
Charge for the year REEREZ 179
On disposals HE (69)
31 December 2006 RZZERF+=A=1T—H 263
Charge for the year REEREZ 247
31 December 2007 RZEELF+=ZA=1+—H 510
Net carrying amount REFE
31 December 2007 RZZZLF+=—A=+—H 3,109
31 December 2006 RZZEEF+=A=+—H 1,807

Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful

life of five years.

%#kaﬁﬁfhzﬂiﬁuﬂiﬂﬂ FHI
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17.

18.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS EEBIEEE
Impairment  Impairment
loss on loss on
property, trade and Accelerated
plant and other  accounting
equipment receivables depreciation Total
EKEZTE
WE -BER REMER illp:d
RERESE FERESE At E @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETE ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTR
Group r&E
1 January 2006 RZZZ F—A—H 7 1,199 - 1,276
Credit to consolidated income statement 5+ A& Uz % 79 98 222 399
31 December 2006 RZETRF+A=+—H 156 1,297 222 1,675
Credit to consolidated income statement 5+ A&RA UzEE - - - -
31 December 2007 R=ZBtF+=-A=t—-H 156 1,297 222 1,675
The Group had unused tax losses of RMB29,848,000 (2006: REERFEEARBATEEEAR

RMB778,000) available for offset against future profits that are
generated by the PRC subsidiaries. The unused tax losses are able to
be carried forward for a consecutive of five years.

DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY 18.
The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The information pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is disclosed as follows:

Maximum balance
during the year

FAREGELR
RMB’000
AR#T

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. BERERBRHERAF 1,453

#29,848,000 7T (ZZZ/1F « AR
778,0007T) * A] AR HE AKE A
AIELEMRIRT] o REVBEIIEEIEA]
HET—FE  NEERFAR -

EWEBEALTKE
PRI — 7 BB A L AOTOR AR -
% B RANERHEE -

BB E D AHEGIZE 161B IRERER
BRI

Balance at Balance at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
R-BEtE+-H WH-TZ F+A

=t+- Rl =t—R#k&
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTIT
1,126 960

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. is a company with Mr. Fang Jin, Mr.
Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors and
shareholders.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the amount due
from a related party approximates to its fair value.

RERERENDBRATS—ENRLE
A BAERBRIEEERLRE
= RBERE AR

E%E@%J@tﬂﬁzﬁﬁa%@/\iﬁlﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
HEENHERE
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &

Group

E3 ]
2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFIT
Raw materials R 88,197 94,908
Work in progress e S ngee) 58,240 =
Finished goods Em 2,677 -
149,114 94,908

PrAEFEH AR

All inventories were stated at cost.

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 20. EWEZFEREKEE

Group

REME
2007 2006
—EELFE “EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
Trade receivables U E 308 183,377 207,237
Notes receivables R 13,808 26,319
197,185 233,556

Less: Allowance for bad and i - RIBEREE

doubtful debts (5,686) (5,983)
191,499 227,573

RIBRRR - ENREBRNEE R

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables as at the balance

sheet date, based on the invoice date and net of allowane, is as FEUWE S 5x0E K R R R IR IRk D AT 20
follows: N
Group
REE
2007 2006
—eRLE  —TTAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
0 to 60 days 0ZE 60X 162,942 168,524
61 to 180 days 61 £ 180K 26,169 55,103
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 1,943 3,808
1 to 2 years —EMF 438 138
2 to 3 years ME=F 7 =
191,499 227,573

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from 60

to 90 days.

AT HEREMNFERIRAANT T 60

£90H -
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Details of trade and notes receivables denominated in different

20.

EWEZRERERERE 2

T RIER5IER &K E 5508 M

currencies are as follows: EEEEEINT
Group
AEE
2007 2006
—EELF T REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Chinese Renminbi AR 172,203 218,299
United States dollars ETT 19,296 9,274
191,499 227,573
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year FERNFIEEBERN ST -
were as follows:
Group
AEE
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
1 January —H—H 5,983 7,241
Impairment losses recognised B EREEE (297) (1,258)
31 December +=—A=+—H 5,686 5,983

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

&Y E 53R MBS IR IREL AT

(EimERI ARG TERRE) AT

Group

REE
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
Neither past due nor impaired I AR B E R E 162,942 168,524
Less than 6 months past due BEAR R NEA 26,169 55,103
Over 6 months past due BERSE A B E 2,388 3,946
191,499 227,573
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continved)  20. FEWE ZFIER BINERE &=

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide I?Ei'JEﬁ:ﬁzﬁ@ﬂ’ﬂﬁ’éﬂﬁlwlﬁiﬁﬁkﬁﬁfﬁ
range of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history K T LR N A8 KUY EC 8% ©

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number Sl o B B sk Rk (B A FE UR R IE R R R 38D
of independent customers that have a good track record with the B R MEERNEES RIFHR
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are 8% o BIBEAELS » ARRIEER AR
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect AREERBSBERNE - MEKREE
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit MNER 2HUKE - AT A L irEEE
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The TTRBEAE - AEEIW AL ELIAEE
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over A RRBRH B STE M o

these balances.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and notes EERREWEFHIE &Fgﬂﬁmfm
receivables approximates to their fair value. IEEEEE AT ERE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. ERE - e REMER

RECEIVABLES I8
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EZEHF TETREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREETTT
Advance to suppliers EREYSEAE S 102,088 74,334
Advance to Fujian Youtong Co., Ltd.  MAIEREABEXERA AR
(Note i) (Bzzi) 52 4,972

Deposit for investment (Note ii) "EES (ML) 20,000 =

Refundable deposits AEREES 1,633 1,493

Others Hth 5,097 48,274

128,870 129,073

Less: Allowance for bad and JB - RIBIR A

doubtful debts (3,280) (2,665)
125,590 126,408

Notes: Hfat -

i) Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao are executive directors of the Company i) & E RINBEE BRNRRHITE
who are also the directors of Fujian Youtong Co., Ltd. (“Fujian EREEABEEARAR ([BER
Youtong”). In the previous year, Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo BESE - AF - FaitE  WBELE
Quan Zeng were the directors and shareholders of Fujian Youtong. REBRIGTERERRAESE RIRR
The advance to Fujian Youtong is trading in nature, unsecured, interest- MEEZRBANHNEBE S IEE
free and repayable on normal commercial terms. EEE - REREREEHEGRE

fit o
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

i)

Deposit for investment was paid to Chaolitong Electronics Company
Limited (“CLTE”) for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Chaolitong Technology Company Limited (“CLTT”) and the production
equipment, inventory and intellectual property rights of CLTE (see note
34a) below).

Details of prepayments, deposits and other receivables denominated in
different currencies are as follows:

FANRIE - RERHEMBEY

:AI,E )

ii) B EER BB AR AR ([BHR
B ) ;2SS KB IRE T
ARAR([BABETWEER
& FERAHRERE BRBHEE
FEHREE S (R ATREIRE34a)) ©

NTREEIIENTRNFTER B2k
HA KRBT T

Group
rEEH
2007 2006
—EE2EHF ZTEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Chinese Renminbi AR 109,673 79,323
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,186 47,085
Japanese Yen HIEl 843 =
United States dollars E7T 12,888 =
125,590 126,408
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year FRARBRBENEHNOT
were as follows:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EEBLHF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
1 January —H—H 2,665 757
Impairment losses recognised B ERREEE 2,643 1,908
Impairment losses reversed B OlRERE (2,028) =
31 December +=—A=+—H 3,280 2,665

None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets included in
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

IAEEBEWAREIE - LA EERFEPTEIE
BRRMRIEN M S EEM A BEL
EERRCER -

EERRENE - e REMEK
IR IRE B EE A FERE -
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22. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 22, EEEH
At the balance sheet date, the following assets have been pledged by REEH  AEBEBUTEERET
the Group in favour of the banks to secure general banking facilities RIT - {ERIIR —MRIRITEEMNER ¢

granted by the banks to the Group:

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREETTT

Motor vehicles TE 2,956 3,290
Bank deposits RITER 29,375 124,045
32,331 127,335

Details of the pledged bank deposits denominated in different A TNEEEINERRITERKIREFS

currencies are as follows: m :

2007 2006
—EZtF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Chinese Renminbi AR 25,847 59,319
United States dollars ETT 3,528 64,726
29,375 124,045
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 4.14% per FABEPRITETIRLNLE(ZTF
annum for the year (2006: 4.17% per annum), and will be released NE  BEAATE) NEEEF =R
upon the settlement of the notes payable. The directors consider that B WS ENENEEE T ARE -
the carrying amount of the pledged bank deposits approximates to B A O IR T S ) R T (E B
their fair value. AEERE -
23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. BITHHKRRRE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and iﬁﬁ,\nﬁé&ﬁfﬁ@%$‘% BiEEHIRS
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or R EF|EA R A= E 8 sk A TS ERSR 1T
less. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.71% B2 - SHSRTESIRE R E R =171
per annum (2006: 0.72% per annum). The directors consider that the B(=EEAE: BEQT2E)E - &
carrying amount of bank balances and cash approximates to their fair H AT DS HIEEEREE A
value.

FERE
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23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Details of bank balances and cash denominated in different

24.

currencies are as follows:

23. RITHEBRRES @
SRR EEFIENRTERRBE S S
M

Group

rEH
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETFT

Chinese Renminbi AREE 343,778 59,216
Hong Kong dollars IT 46,312 191,713
United States dollars EJT 78,393 236,008

468,483 486,937

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Details are as follows:

Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd.

Fol kB (FE)
BRAA]
BERERBNERAT

ARE([ARE DI B hHBE
B - A BPESNEEIRIRDI R
REE - (MEREETEME  ANEET
R AT TINE H AR TS 2 R1THR
o

24. BN EBEALRE
BRI AT H R TBMEN - 28
RARBREEE -

BT

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT

- 2,129
- 225

- 2,354
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24. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (continued) 24. BNEREALTRE @
Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong) Company Limited was a company with FEIE  MBEERBRIGEERF
Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common SAEB (BB AR ARIMHERESE KR
directors and shareholders. It was dissolved by deregistration on 7 R ZARBER_ZEZELF+=-A+tAH
December 2007. VAHUH SE1 75 AR AR o
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Stock”) is a company with Mr. FehE - MBI ERBRILILLERE
Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common ERERBOHER AR ([ RERZD])
directors and shareholders. HHEREZES KRR -
25. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 25 EHESFERESGERE
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARET T

Trade payables B S508 89,042 25,328
Notes payables i ANEE 44,366 69,473
133,408 94,801
An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the balance sheet TRARGEE ARNE S FIERENE
date is as follows: BERIRER DT -
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ETLEF —ETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

0 to 60 days 0ZE 60K 76,731 86,790
61 to 180 days 61 £180K 49,068 6,589
181 to 365 days 181 2365~ 5,962 1,229
1 to 2 years —EMF 1,456 146
2 to 3 years === 144 -
Over 3 years =FUE 47 47
133,408 94,801
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade ENESRBIEaEESEEREGE
purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for KA AL MFIE - E5EENEEH

trade purchases ranged from 30 to 60 days. FHNF30BEHZE60H °
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25. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES (continued) 25. ENESRENRENSERE
Included in above are payables to Scud Stock amounting to RMBNIl J:L@%Jgﬁﬂx%ﬂiﬁxfﬁi” IE/\EMQ
(2006: RMB600,000). Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and Mr. Guo TL(ZZEZTRF : ARKE600,0007T) °
Quan Zeng are executive directors of the Company who are also the FEITE - MBEERIBRIGEE B
directors and shareholders of Scud Stock. NAITES MARERBRHMHERES
MARER -
Details of trade and notes payables denominated in different MRS EIER FERE 5 5R18 R ER
currencies are as follows: BB
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELEF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Chinese Renminbi AREE 97,553 83,399
United States dollars EW 19,281 8,619
Hong Kong dollars BIT 4,992 2,783
Japanese Yen H 11,582 -
133,408 94,801
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and notes EERRENESFEBERENZERRIR
payables approximates to their fair value. HEEE AT EEE
26. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 26. EmRIEEHFES
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELHF TERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
1 January —H—H 2,572 1,606
Additions 30 - 966
Release o (347) =
31 December +=—A=+—H© 2,225 2,572

The provision for warranty claims represents management’s best

EmREREEFSREREREBE

estimate of the Group’s liability under a half-year warranty program LEERFENXEFHHE - RAEEF
granted on the own-brand name battery, based on prior experience EHEEREE L FRETINEE

and industry averages for defective products.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of provision for

warranty approximates to its fair value.

{EH B AAT -

E=RREMMREEFSNIREERE

DNFEEE -
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27. OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPT IN ADVANCE 27. HhEKIE » HIRFRIER

AND ACCRUED CHARGES EstER
Group
AEE
2007 2006
—BRLE —BTRE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Deposits from customers BFEES 6,076 3,686
Payroll and welfare payables JE 1S 5 B K A ) 4,324 3,392
Accrued expenses FEETFSE 4,172 35,883
Purchase of property, BEM=E
plant and equipment R K 5% - 18,349
Estimated costs for reconstruction JEEZ NG
of the rented premises THEYHE
being damaged in fire EOIETA®: 8,285 =
Other taxes payable E A e BIIE 7,331 =
Others EAh 547 928
30,735 62,238
Details of other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges AT RIE S HIMER B E T 58 - AU
denominated in different currencies are as follows: HIBRESTERFBOT
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EBtE  —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Chinese Renminbi AR 28,255 26,703
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,454 35,535
United States dollars XL 26 =
30,735 62,238
The directors consider that the carrying amount of other payables, 2D ANEBRNEMENZIE - FBK
receipt in advance and accrued charges approximates to their fair 8 [ fESt 2 PR 8O 0E E(E B E A a4

value. =
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28. BANK LOANS

28. SRITEX

Group

E3 1]
2007 2006
—EELE —EETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFIT

Secured bank loans EHEIRERTT m« 14,406 56,850
Unsecured bank loans EIRHRITE - 20,918
14,406 77,768

The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows:

RITEFERFHNT ¢

Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EE2LHF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREETTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRIZERK 13,444 76,362
After 1 year but within 2 years —ERERERN 444 444
After 2 year but within 5 years MEZREBERFA 518 962
962 1,406

14,406 77,768

At 31 December 2007, bank loans of RMB1,406,000 were
secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount

of RMB2,956,000 (see also note 22 above). Bank loans of
RMB13,000,000 were guaranteed for repayment by Scud Battery.

At 31 December 2006, bank loans of RMB56,850,000 were
secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount of
RMB3,290,000 and the Group’s bank deposits of RMB124,045,000.
Total bank loans of RMB77,680,000 were guaranteed for repayment
jointly by Scud Battery and Great Speed Enterprises Limited (“Great
Speed”).

R_EELF+-_A=+—H " BK
AEREE 1,406,000 TTHYSRITE FUAAR
EEIRMEEA R 2,956,000 LAY T
BEAEH (R EMTFE22) - AR
13,000,000 T KIERITE N R ERRE)
RLE SRR o

REZZZAF+ZA=1+—0 " BEA
R¥56,850,0007T KSR TEFARNEE
EE@AEM&%Q@DEWm$&$
&£ [E A R¥E 124,045,000 TR ERTTIE K
EBIEIR - & ARE77,768,0007TH)
ﬂ%% KA RER B MR RATEFR
AR ([RR]) LR HERIER -
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28. BANK LOANS (Continued)
The fair value of the above bank loans is estimated by discounting
their future cash flows at the prevailing market borrowing rates at the
balance sheet date.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are also equal
to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are

as follows:
Average effective BESERZ
interest rate on BB A=

fixed-rate borrowings

28.

BITER @
FRTE RN A TERSE ATISE
BRI E QAR REMEHAE -

AEENERNFHERF S (FEE
REMFE) T

Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELF —TERX
4.88% 5.65%

Details of bank borrowings denominated in different currencies are as

AR AR BB R A AT

follows:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ETLF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETF T
Chinese Renminbi AREE 14,406 76,848
United States dollars ET - 920
14,406 77,768

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the bank loans
approximates to their fair value.

E=RRRTEENREEEZLATE
RE -



A e
125

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RRIEE

31 December 2007 H-_ZZ+HE+-A=+—H

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. AR MES
Great Speed, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, issued AEBEZ2EMBRAREAR-ZTZTRF
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB78,161,000) —)51 — +=H%%7710,000,000 3%t (18
convertible bonds on 23 January 2006 with a coupon rate of 2.5% R# AR 78,161,000 7T ) E’J—Hﬁﬁx
per annum, a redemption premium of 12% per annum, and a maturity {53':} BFEEEXRE25E  BOGFE
date on 22 January 2010 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The holders BF12E HHAR=ZF— ?E*ﬂ

of the Convertible Bonds have the right at any time before maturity
date to convert all or a portion of the Convertible Bonds into the
Company’s ordinary shares. Conversion notice shall be deemed

to be served and all Convertible Bonds then outstanding shall be
cancelled upon the issue of shares issuable upon conversion of
such bonds in full on the date falling on the expiry of 6 months from
the date of completion of listing of the Company. The conversion
price per convertible bond was US$1,269 and will be subject to
adjustments upon the occurrence of dilutive events. None of the
Convertible Bonds may be redeemed by Great Speed before the
maturity date without the prior written consent of all the holders of the
Convertible Bonds.

The conversion would not result in settlement by the exchange of a
fixed amount for a fixed number of equity instruments; therefore, the
entire Convertible Bonds were designated as “financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss” which require the Convertible Bonds
to be carried at fair value at the balance sheet date and the changes
in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
During the year ended 31 December 2006, a loss on change in its
fair value of approximately RMB8,495,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

On 15 September 2006, a supplemental agreement to the issue of
Convertible Bonds was signed between the Group and the holders of
the Convertible Bonds to modify the terms of the Convertible Bonds.
Key changes of terms to the original agreement include (i) reduction
of redemption premium from 12% to 7.875%; and (ji) fixing of the
foreign exchange rates of United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars against Chinese Renminbi. With effect of these new terms that
significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required
under the supplemental agreement, management carried out a
re-assessment of the Convertible Bonds. Such modification was
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.

T+ A ([ARpRES ) o aTHRE
FRA AB R EIE B Al (AT A 85
FTA sk o AR EH AR A AR L E
% o R AQ R _ETTER B BifRET MmN
& A& B2 EEREMESR 78T
RIRR D I9EE TR « RIEEIRE AN G R AR
REZEL - MATASRERITENRE
AR ES AR RE L - BH AR
I ESFREREA1,260% T © WK
HIRESE =R T AR o AN EH
HATEERS AT TR ESRFE AW
EEEARE T - TEEO AR E
%o

BRSNS B S K IEE E SRR
EEEE B AR AT EER - Bt - &
AR ES IR EER [RERIRA
BRATEARNMEAGE] - FE R
BEHFENEERIZAFEAR - A
?TEE’J""‘;@U RIE R AR A e R N RE
ReRBE-_ZTTZFt+_-_A=+—H
IEFEA - EATEEHNEBEEHAR
#£8,495,0007T B ihr & Uiz sk N HERR

REZZEXRNFNA+RRA - AEEHEA
BREFIFE AR BT R ESFT
W7 - DMERT AR EH R I5K ©
RAEMZGERNEZSEBIE () EEE
B 12% M & 7.875% K (i) B E 3=
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ERERE - BEED RBATRKRESE
TEHFEL - BRIETPIEER IRV
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30.

ZEE+-_HA=+—H

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The fair value of the Convertible Bonds on 15 September 2006 has
been determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Upon the re-assessment, the Convertible Bonds contain two
components, liability and equity elements. The equity component
is presented in equity heading “convertible bonds reserve”. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 15.49%.

During the year, the holders of the Convertible Bonds has exercised
the conversion rights under the Convertible Bonds and on 7 February
2007, the Company allotted and issued 93,001,246 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each at the conversion price. Such conversion shares
represented approximately 9.38% of the ordinary shares in issue as
at 7 February 2007 (see note 30 below).

20. FTRM S (0

RoZEAFNA+HER - TRRES
MATEDRAN A% — R
B -

REFHFHE  JRRESBEAER
S EED D - HERSERD LA [ AR AR E
HiEE] BT UEREY - mMaESH
K EBR AR A 15.49% ©

FA - RRESEE ABITEARR
EFIE NBAE - MAREERZE
T+ F = A HEE1793,001,246 [k E
[REMEO0.10 BT R - BELR
BAMER —EE+F - At HMBE BT
A9 9.38%( 2T XXFIFES0)

SHARE CAPITAL 30. R
2007 2006
—ETLF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETFT
Authorised: JERE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares 5,000,000,000 A% &= %
of HK$0.10 each 1B 0.108 TH) Z A% 502,350 502,350
Issued and fully paid: EETRAE :
992,001,246 ordinary shares 992,001,246 R & mAX
(2006: 860,000,000 ordinary shares) (ZZZ /R4 : 860,000,000 A @A) 99,503 86,404

On 8 January 2007, the Company issued and allotted 39,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$2.02 each upon the exercise
of the over-allotment option pursuant to the Company’s prospectus
for a total consideration of approximately HK$78,780,000.

On 7 February 2007, the holder of the convertible bonds in issue
has exercised its right to convert all the convertible bonds totalling
US$10,000,000 into an aggregate of 93,001,246 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company (see also note 29 above).

RZZEZLF—AN\B ' XARRITE
RIBA R AR EIZATS M BB A S 42
%1250 2.02 BITHBIR BT R A%
39,000,000 IR EAREE0.10 HBITH) &
f% - R (E#) 478,780,000 BT °

RZZEZtF=-AtH E%’fﬁ"ﬁﬁ
REH A ABITERAGHEE &
10,000,000 E T AJ AR EHEIR A
£ 3£93,001,246 IR B B EIE
0.10 BRI E BAR (BN 2 H _E3CMisE
29) °
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31.

ZEHE+-_HA=+—H

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years and the Company by
ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of directors of the
Company may at anytime terminate the Scheme without prejudice to
the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which remain
unexpired immediately prior to such termination.

At 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 23,830,000 (2006: 24,970,000), representing 2.4%
(2006: 2.9%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of share issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing
in aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of
such grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s
shareholders (voting by way of poll).

31.

URHBBERZNRRXS
AR Z B RERTE ([ %13 ) BB
BT F+_A=-HHREEBEMNZ
REF NESRHEERMEBORER
W o RIBEZTE - AAREZEAMAE
EiREE (BREAARRANBARE
F) RO ATRBAR A 2 BB -
ZETERMFEH R+ F - BBz E
FHAMELBRELNERER LR
NEWEBRE ST - AR B A EER
RAE L ERARRIANFESTE
RIPMEfI A AR bR AT & -

R-ZEE+F+-HA=1+—8 &
ZeTE TR B MR EBRE 2 IR
788 /423,830,000 (=BT /N4 :
24,970,000) ' (EANA B ERFE BT
92.4% (ZZTZTNEF : 2.9%) o REAR
“ﬂ%?%%mﬁm'ﬁ%mﬁa%%

BEE B AR 2 IR D B ECTS BR A
@ﬂThE%ﬁkGZm%o*%$@
RIRRER = Se it /ERT - BREAREREER
EAERIA LB R E A TI% L B
B BT TEITHRDE B T 58
BN A TREEEITRMDE 1% - HREE
ﬁ—%z%%%&—%ﬁj#ﬁﬁ§$
HFES A ZBMEA LR L AL
BB AR 2 B BT R T BTG 42 2
B AR TR E B HRA0.1% A £
sk 4A{EB H 5,000,000/87T& * WES
FEB AR Bl IR R (RIRE
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31.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31.

(Continued)

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on the grant of an option. Options

are vested in the following manner:

Period of exercise of the relevant percentage of option

1TIRERE IR AR B 20 L 2 AR

From the expiry of the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the second anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

i E H BRI B E i H AR mRE
Z&EBHIE (REEERR)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

i H AR mAE SR E E H BRI =B
ZE&E A (BREEEMX)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B E H R M =B E i H AR mIE
Z&EBHIE (REERERR)

The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company to be fixed at HK$2.02 per share.

Details of specific category of options are as follows:

RO BERINRRS

/g
(4&)

RE1TBTERNRLBIRER A - B
BT OGN BRE :

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
ATEEREZESESL

30% of the total number of options granted

ERHBRERARIZ 30%

30% of the total number of options granted

ERHBREAZUZ 30%

40% of the total number of options granted

B ERERE  40%

TEERARRESERE - MAEEZ

T EAESR2.028TT -
R AR R BB AR 2 FEIBET T ¢

Fair value per option

Exercise period

1T RELAHSHBRENDTE

21 December 2007 to 21 December 2008 HK$0.37

—EELF+-_A=-+—H 0.37 87T
E2_ZTT)\F+=-_A=+—H

21 December 2008 to 21 December 2009 HK$0.47

—EENF+ZA=Z+—H 0.47 BT
BEEENF+ZA=+—H

21 December 2009 to 21 December 2010 HK$0.57

—EThF+=A=1+—H 0.57 7T

2T ZTF+-_A=+—H

at grant date

No. of vested options granted

RENEEERERE

7,149,000 (i.e. 30%)
(EN30%)

7,149,000 (i.e. 30%)
(BN30%)

9,532,000 (i.e. 40%)
(EN40%)
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31. LXHQ@ZE_';E AN

(Continued)

Movements of the share options held by directors and employees
during the year were as follows:

EXNEERFAMFEBEREZES

Group
REE
2007 2006
ZBBLF ZERERF
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding outstanding
e RATBE W ARITHE
BRERE fERREEL B
Directors =
1 January —H—H 15,300,000 -
Granted during the year FARD - 15,300,000
31 December +=A=+—H” 15,300,000 15,300,000
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EZtF ZETREF
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding outstanding
i RATHE HARSTIEE
BREHE fERR R
Employees (==
1 January —H—H 9,670,000 =
Granted during the year FAKHS - 9,670,000
Forfeited during the year FRE (1,140,000) =
31 December +=A=+—H” 8,530,000 9,670,000




1 30 SCUD Group Limited Annual Report 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R

31 December 2007 H-ZZT+HE+-A=+—H

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  31. 55&@3%56%21#%&&%

(Continued)
Options were granted on 21 December 2006 and the estimated fair BREER - EEFt+_A-1+—
value of the options granted was approximately HK$11,713,000 B - PR ERE 2 AR AT E
(equivalent to RMB11,768,000). The Black-Scholes pricing model #1/11,713,000 87T (FBERARE
has been used to estimate the fair value of the share options. The 11,768,0007T) ° WA ETZA 7=
following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of the —ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂfh*f’iﬁﬁﬁ o LATMRER
share options: Rt EHEREQFEE
21 December 2006
—EEXRF+ZA=1+—H
Weighted average share price InFEEHARE HK$2.88 78 7T
Exercise price 1IEE HK$2.02 78 7T
Expected life fERERE 1.5-3.5 years &
Expected volatility TastR g 38.15%
Expected dividend yield IER e 2.54%
Risk-free interest rate: #2612
Option A B A 3.58%
Option B FEARHEB 3.61%
Option C BREC 3.69%
The fair value of the share options granted was HK$0.3716 per i ERE 2 A TEAR0.3716 8T
share. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been WAERE - B TE RO EEEE
adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the effects of RIREEER &R - 17(5R 5
non-transferability, restrictions to exercise (including the probability of (BIEB RN ST a TRz BREES)
meeting market conditions attached to the options), and behavioural RIREZRRAZRNE EEHMREMGET
considerations. Expected volatility is based on the current average il T LAFAEE o TEEHRB) TR A B AP
annualised standard deviations of the continuously compounded 2R E R 2 B A& AR
rates of return on the share prices of other comparable with similar MHBEEEFRREER s THEE
business operations listed in the Stock Exchange. EEZRETE -
The Group recognised a total expense of RMB5,812,000 for the year AEBREBE_ZT+F+A=1+—
ended 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB175,000) in relation to share HIFFE(ZEZRF: AR 175,000
options granted by the Group. TC) BRANR RIFTIR (B AR SR B S 4R

A AR5 812,0007T °
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The name of and the relationship with related companies are as

a)

SRBERME

R-ZF2LF+-A=1+—H

follows:

Name

=1

Mr. Fang Jin
FekE

Mr. Lin Chao
MBS &

Mr. Guo Quan Zeng
ZPIRIL T4

Scud Electronics
RERET

Fujian Youtong Co., Ltd.

(“Fujian Youtong”)
BRERBEEARAR ([fBERE])
Fujian Junpeng Hardware

Co., Ltd.

(“Junpeng Hardware”)

BEEELSERAR(ERBERLE )

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
(“Scud Stock”)
REREBRRHOERAR]

32. EREALIRS
a) BAREAZENMERRBENT ¢

Relationship
B#

Director

E=

Director
-
Director

8=

A wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with
Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao being common directors

HEEERMBEERKAZETN AR RBEZENBLRR

A company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao
being common directors

HEEERMBEERHKRAEZTNAF

A company with Mr. Lin Chao being a common
director and shareholder

MEEBLRESEREROAF

A company with Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and
Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors and shareholders

HEEE  MBEERBRIZEERAAERERBIROHLQF]

([FRERRAR 1)
Transactions with related companies during the year (b) ﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁk WA M WBEOFNE
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are FRELRIRZBMIAT -
summarised as follows:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EZLHF —EETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
Purchases of raw materials from: B E RM#} :
~ Fujian Youtong (Note i) — BRI (M) 14,370 16,458
- Junpeng Hardware (Note i) — RS (Hfati) - 1,972
Purchases of moulds from: BEEA
— Fujian Youtong (Note i) —TRERB (M) 133 1,145
- Junpeng Hardware (Note i) — BB RS (Hfatii) - 300
Rental expenses paid to: HeM%
~ Scud Stock (Note i) —TRERRRR D (AL ii) 2,870 2,472
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as
agreed between the parties in the normal course of business.

Notes:

)

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated 11
December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered into a
purchase agreement with Fujian Youtong on 1 August 2006,
pursuant to which Scud Electronics had agreed to source raw
materials and plastic moulds from Fujian Youtong for the period
from 1 August 2006 till 1 August 2009.

The purchases of raw materials and moulds from Fujian
Youtong constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The annual caps
with respect to the purchases for the years ended/ending 31
December 2006, 2007 and 2008 have been determined to
be RMB16,500,000, RMB17,500,000 and RMB22,100,000,
respectively.

The price paid by the Group for the raw materials and moulds
was determined by reference to the then prevailing market price
and was no more favourable than that offered by independent
third parties. All purchases from Fujian Youtong were conducted
on an arms’ length basis and on normal commercial terms. The
Group is not obligated to purchase any raw materials and plastic
moulds from Fujian Youtong but should it choose to do so, it
would be made by reference to market prices at the relevant
time. The Group is also able to source raw materials and moulds
of similar quality from other independent third parties suppliers
at comparable costs. Directors of the Company believe that
mould suppliers are easily sourced and they will only contract
with Fujian Youtong to the extent the terms are on normal
commercial terms (or better) in favour of the Group.

Having regard to the fact that i) the Group had historically
sourced raw materials and plastic moulds from Fujian
Youtong at prices that are no more favourable than these
offered by independent third parties; and ii) Fujian Youtong
provides services and products of qualities that meet with
the expectations of the Group, the directors of the Company
consider that the purchases from Fujian Youtong were a)
conducted on an arms’ length basis and on normal commercial
terms; b) fair and reasonable in respect of the terms set

out above; and c) in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The actual amount of raw materials and moulds purchased from
Fujian Youtong for the year ended 31 December 2006 totalled
approximately RMB17,603,000, thereby exceeding the cap

by RMB1,103,000 and therefore the Group was in breach of
the maximum aggregate annual value requirement under Rule
14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules.

32. BEEEALIRS &

Ll 5T —
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BB TT B E MBI S RETT -
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)

ARARERBERR-TTRF
'1' At+—BERRERTR

P REBREFER_ZTN
E)\ﬂ B AR ABAT S —
BRI $Eli|: REBRE
FERER-_ZTXNFNA—
HE—ZTNAF/N\A—RILH
B B ARE AR R R K 28
BIEA o
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RFHERER S - BREZE
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ENRETF LRESRIE
A AR#16,500,0007C A
FR# 17,500,000 TT R A R
22,100,000 JT °
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

)

i)

R-ZF2LF+-A=1+—H

Junpeng Hardware is principally engaged in the provision of ii)
networking facilities, electonic apparatus, parts and fittings, and

the production and development of different kinds of hardware

spare parts and moulds. This company’s core business is not

the marketing and distribution of rechargeable battery packs for

mobile phones in the PRC, which is the Group’s core business.

Although Mr. Lin is a director and shareholder of this company,
he is not involved in the day-to-day management of its business
and he merely attends routine board meetings and reviews the
company’s financial statements.

In 2006, this company has provided small amounts of hardware
connectors for the Group’s battery packs. However, the Group
is not obliged to purchase these hardware connectors from
Junpeng Hardware and may source products of similar quality
from other independent third parties at comparable costs. No
transactions were entered into with Junpeng Hardware in 2007.

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated 11 iii)
December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered into a

lease agreement with Scud Stock on 20 June 2004, pursuant

to which Scud Electronics had agreed to lease from Scud

Stock certain factory premises in Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the

PRC, for the Group’s production use for a term of three years

commencing 1 July 2004 and ending on 30 June 2007 (the

“Lease Agreement”). The Lease Agreement was later extended

to 30 June 2024.

The annual rental payable under the Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has set its initial
annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December
2008 to be RMB2,700.000 each.

On 15 November 2007, Scud Electronics entered into a new
lease agreement for leasing another premises in Fuzhou,
Fujian Province, the PRC, from Scud Stock for the Group’s
administrative use (the “New Lease Agreement”).

The annual caps have been revised following the signing of the
New Lease Agreement. The new annual caps for the aggregate
rental payable by Scud Electronics to Scud Stock under all

the leases for the years ended/ending 31 December 2007,
2008 and 2009 have been determined to be RMB3,000,000,
RMB4,100,000 and RMB4,100,000, respectively.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement and the

New Lease Agreement were determined after arms’ length
negotiations between Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with
reference to the prevailing market rental for the comparable
premises.

The directors of the Company have confirmed that the Company iv)
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance

with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the continuing

connected transactions stated in Notes i), i) and iii) above.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

c)

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note

8, is as follows:

32.

EBREAXTRF @

o TEEBATHME (BRI
HBARBHEXNARAES
E) T

Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETTT
Salaries, bonus, allowance e o B - 2R
and other benefits KB A=A 882 2,277
Retirement benefits scheme RIRBFIFTEIHER
contributions 16 14
Equity-settled share-based IRANAEE 2 ARRID 7=
payments i 2 IR 3,732 -
4,630 2,291
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. &iE
a) Capital commitments a) EREIE
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EZTLHF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARET T

Contracted but not accounted B stEE W -

for, in respect of acquisition R K 5%
of property, plant #MERAMR
and equipment 139,773 6,473
b) Operating lease commitments b) RERNEE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding REER - REEIREBA A B
minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating AR LI RIETH W R &
leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as RAEHE R RA T B ZI R -
follows:
Group
EE
2007 2006
—ETELHF ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARKETT
Within one year —FR 3,235 2,146
In the second and MELF (BEMF
fifth years inclusive BREEA) 6,940 250

10,175 2,396
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34. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 12 December 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Mr. Ma Yuk Sang (“the Vendor”), the 30%
shareholder of a 70% indirect subsidiary (the “Purchaser”) of the
Company whereby the Vendor agreed to procure the sale of entire
equity interest (“Sale Interest”) in Chaolitong Technology Company
Limited (“CLTT”) to the Purchaser and the sale of the production
equipment, inventory and intellectual property rights (“Sale Assets”)
of Chaolitong Electronics Company Limited (“CLTE”) to CLTT.

The Sale Assets, related senior management and employees who
are expected to join CLTT as from the completion date of the
aforesaid transaction (that is, the date on which all the conditions

to the Agreement are fulfilled (or waived, as the case may be) and
the acquisition of the Sale Interest and Sale Assets are completed)
have previously been responsible for managing the manufacture
and sale of rechargeable battery packs for mobile phones under the
“Chaolitong & 77:6" brand in the PRC. “Chaolitong & 778
the largest rivals to the “SCUD FEfE” brand of rechargeable battery
packs for mobile phones in the PRC.

The total consideration for the acquisition of Sale Interest and Sale
Assets is up to RMB245 million, whereby RMB37 million will be paid
for the purchase of the Sale Interest and the Sale Assets and the
balance of up to RMB208 million to the Vendor. The RMB208 million
consists of RMB91 million in cash and up to RMB117 million to be
satisfied by the issue of at least 30 million and no more than 60 million
consideration shares at HK$2.05 each if the net profit after tax targets
are met or exceeded for the financial years ending 31 December
2008, 2009 and 2010.

As the acquisition of Sale Interest and Sale Assets has not been
effected at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, it is not practicable to disclose further details about the
acquisition.

" is one of

HEHRER

| R—TELEL-A+—A - AAR

BEELE S ((ET ] RADTRE
70% IR HREMB AT (B )+

15 30% M KBRS STSI 1 (1%
%)) BHRBREHERRTFESN
BRI ERAT(TBARRE 23
RRAHER ([ ) TEH ARME
RYTRABETERADNBNABE
T AR - TR R A ([ 3
EBE ) TRABR - HEEE - B
B3 F i3 55eRk B (BB pT e
WP REERR (S E e (RIER TR ) & 8
RS R E AN S E R B
) B IAB N AR E S REE
BRIESLAGEEEREREN &
i RIERE R HEBEEE k%
BB o #8718 ) 5 SCUDRERE]
SEBBHBE R TEEHAETEY
AR —ERABFYF -

HEE= MIHEEERBSENRNR
BEx% A AR 245,000,000 7 @ &+
AFR#E 37,000,000 JT 5 37 15 A Uk B 8
ERRNIEEEE  MREHARE
208,000,000 LRI AR RERIZ [ T & ©
Z AR # 208,000,000 TTHIFIE B IR
£ AR#91,000,0007T * MHREE
ZTENF ZETNFRZZTF
F+ZA=+—BIEFEEED KB
KREBERTIFREEE  AIRZARK
117,000,000 JTi#§ AIZ &% 2.05 T By
{B1& %1785 30,000,000 i & 21
60,000,000 B& AR RN 4+ ©

Eﬁﬁﬂkﬁﬁfﬁ’if“*&fﬁiéﬁ‘]ﬁiﬁf‘L
BRE AR HREK B AR FLARRE
BEARUENE— TS
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the balance sheet date
are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated:
Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and
operation
Name of company MK LK
AEER KEwE
Great Speed Enterprises British Virgin
Limited Islands
pi ikt 21 FYNG| EBRUES
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong
Company Limited Bk
REREE(BE)BRAF
Keen Power Holdings Hong Kong
Limited 0
HEEERAR
Joint Smart Holdings Hong Kong
Limited Bt
BEEEERAR
Scud Electronics PRC
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. |
REREF (RN BRAR
(Note i)
(Hati)

Issued and
paid-up
share/
registered
capital
BRETRESH
BERA

US$50,000
50,0007t

HK$1,000
1,0007T

HK$1,000
1,000/87T

HK$10,000
1,000/7T

US$3,000,000
3,000,000%7T

35. B AR

REZEBARFMBARFBNT B
FRTTHA - BFHEORMDER AL :

Group’s
effective
ownership
interest
AEBEXR
EEER
2007 2006
ZBELE z

100%

100%" 100%*

100%” =

70%" =

100%" 100%*

Principal
activities

TREH

Investment holding

RARR

Provision for
corporate
management
services

REDAER IR

Investment holding

REER

Not yet
commence
business

HARRESR

Manufacturing
and sale of
rechargeable
battery packs,
chargers and
related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook
computers, digital
cameras and other
electrical
appliances
SERHERR
INFEIETE
ZRAEN - B
REME T B
ZRREENA
FERREMARERS
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. MiE AR @

Group’s
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered AEEEN
operation capital BEER Principal
Name of company MK BRIRES 2007 2006  activities
kL TEH Y BB “EETHE  ZTTNF FEER

Scud (Fujian) Electronics PRC US$20,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. H 20,000,000 7T and sale of
(RER(BR)EFERAE) rechargeable
(Note i) battery packs,
(Hrati) chargers and
related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook
computers, digital
cameras and other
electrical
appliances
SUE RS IER
WBEEE  ELA
B - SRR A
BTRUN-ARES
HiBRE

Scud (Fujian) Battery PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. H 30,000,000 7T and sale of
(FRERR (B EHERAR) rechargeable
(Note iif) battery packs,
(Hratii) chargers and
related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook
computers, digital
cameras and other
electrical
appliances
SERHERBRED
B BRAEHK
YRR EMET
EHH-AREE
A RERER
HiBRE

Scud (Fujian) New Energy PRC US$750,000 100%* - Notyet

Technology Co., Ltd. H 750,000 7T commence
(FRERR (BRR) FTa R RRITER A R) business
(Note iv) WA EE
(Hiitiv)

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited & BREACEAR A AEEZAER
# Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings Limited # FEiB et EEBR A REEEEERS
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 26

October 2006.

ii) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 31

35. BT &)

HraE -

i) HNEBEDLHE  —TTRFTA
—TRBEFAPALTE -

ii SNEBELRE - —NANEFTA
=t REFR/PAtTE -

October 1997.
i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 6 iy HNEBELE —ETRFTAN
December 2005. At AHA+F -
i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 30 iv) HINEBERE —ETEFHA=T
Bist BHA T4 -

April 2007.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

36. REHB T 2EMTA
REHE - SFEBIERMT ANIREEN

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: N
Group
AEE
2007
—EETLHF
Loans and
receivables
BERREWRE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Financial assets SREE
Due from a related party FEUE B8 A 5808 1,126
Trade and notes receivables fEN & 5708 K R UR R % 191,499
Prepaid lease payments FE R EFIE 12,501
Financial assets included in TERFIR « HRe REA
prepayments, deposits and FEWGRIEFTE IR
other receivables WemEE 26,093
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 29,375
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 468,483

729,077
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. #zERZo2EemMI @

(Continued)
Group
rEH
2007
—EELF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised costs
RE S A AR
NERmMAE
RMB’000
ARET T
Financial liabilities A=A
Trade and notes payables FE B 5 50E R B R iE 133,408
Financial liabilities included in E b fEATRIE - FAMGRIA K
other payables, receipt in et BRAEEN
advance and accrued charges SHAE 14,033
Bank loans IRITER 14,406

161,847
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|8loz€mI B

(Continued)
Group
REE
2006
“ETRE
Loans and
receivables
£ \FA&FE”&HAIE
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Financial assets SEMEE
Due from a related party FENF 8 A 7008 960
Trade and notes receivables FEUN B 55K TE K FR M R 15 227,573
Prepaid lease payments FE R EFE 12,382
Financial assets included in A « He REAM
prepayments, deposits and EWFIBFTEIE
other receivables NEemEE 47,102
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 124,045
Bank balances and cash IRITEBREIRS 486,937
898,999
Group
REE
2006
ZETRF
Financial assets
at fair value through
profit or loss Financial
designated as such liabilities at
upon initial amortised
recognition costs
R IR RER R REH
BAFEEBER BARANRA Total
PR A BB SRBE HET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETTT AREEFTT
Financial liabilities SREE
Due to related parties JESBRBEALTFIE - 2,354 2,354
Trade and notes payables e B 5 50E R BN RIE - 94,801 94,801
Financial liabilities included E A0 PRI « TEWGRIE
in other payables, RpEET &
receipt in advance and R BeE
accrued charges HEmEE - 62,238 62,238
Bank loans RITER - 77,768 77,768
Convertible bonds AR ES 78,410 = 78,410
78,410 237,161 315,571
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37. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL 37. IKRBRERAEER MG
MANAGEMENT AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR NEE
VALUES
a) Financial risk management a) MEBEREE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
which include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The directors manage and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

REBEEB AR ZEMG

R BIET SRR (B2IEINER

B FRERRERRR)EE

BRERBIERR - B RIRIEZ

vﬂfﬁ HIBERAIFFBEHN T °

EXEHEREEZFTRR

© LARE

RERIWIAB S XN EHEEE R

it o
i) Foreign currency risk management U HERBREE
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements FNE BB E SN IE R 2B
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect the SRBAREOMBRE
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Although EEBRERENRR - &
EREEERE TIAE

the Group has certain bank balances and bank loans
denominated in United States dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion of these

T - BEIRETAERR
RITEBRREHRRITE

foreign currency balances to the Group’s total assets o R - ZFINERE
is insignificant. The Group has convertible bonds, HREAKENEELHIIL
denominated in United States dollars and the terms of TEK - AREHEANE
conversion are fixed between Chinese Renminbi and TCRER R AR ES -
United States dollars on 15 September 2006, and as WTRZFEANFAATE
such no hedging arrangement of foreign currency risk AET ARBEITHE
has been entered into. Furthermore, the Group carries B EEERRAR
out majority of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi. 6 ESSTT Y BE KON EN T
Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the Group is K - ERILBEAEL ERSNE
not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk. RUBREIZHE o LESh - SR
BEAARBHEITERZE
x5 At - EERRAR
KB EAZEREARL
HNEE LRy
ZNER [ ST B0 SR [\ e 3

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

BB R AR LT
I .
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37. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

a) Financial risk management (Continued)

ii) Interest rate risk management
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged bank
deposits and bank balances which are all short-term
in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-bearing
financial liabilities are mainly bank loans and convertible
bonds with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is
not exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the need
arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in
existence at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2007 and the accumulated
profits as of 31 December 2007 would decrease/
increase by RMB4,959,785 (2006: decrease/increase
by RMB5,985,105). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed
significantly from the prior year.

B ER R ERNEE R
NEE )

a) HKERRER®)

i)  FIEEEEE

BB EEEERKH
MEHBIERRITERR
RITHERR + WIREE FIR
e M EMKAEER
RIRE R R BARTT
BERR AR ES - B

It AEERETEE®
E|EREE - N A
SZEANATFERNEE

B o ZNSE [E3R B I S (T AR
FEEDRBR R E B
ERERFILAIEE R o

FIEGRZ T

AT BURE D WEF“
NEBBEREEREE
MmER] - WERARHR
ZHEEHRMBLAZ
MERER - RAERERE
A AR g ) PO R
EREE 1% BN 4R
EREEHNEA RS
B 27l o

fRF R0, S5 1% i B
BEMERERFTE - A
EEBE_TTLE T
B=+—BLFERNRH
FR=—ZEZE+F+_A4
=t+—BNZREFHER
A 380 A R ¥ 4,950,785
T(ZTTNE R
AR 5,985,1057T) °
%BI%K§$EEEE
BRFIRRE -

7t [ 0 R B B
AL W E A -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL 37. BIEARRERERE R4
MANAGEMENT AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR YNSZENE )
VALUES (Continued)
a) Financial risk management (Continued) a) MEBRBRERE@
iii)  Price risks management fii) {5’75 E[ﬁ EE ¥
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have EFRAAREL TS
significant exposure to price risks. BRERERR -
iv)  Credit risk management iv) EERBREE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk primarily

EERRIEHFRETA
WEAET 3 BAR BT
BRGAR - AR

relates to the Group’s bank balances and cash, trade BRBEREATENR
= =
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The THEekAE  BRES

maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at
end of the financial year in relation to each class of

RAEMERERE - UEE
L ENRIRERE W8 F
TR R ARBEETT

recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of ?&%%%WET’E%%% &
= A =
those assets as stated in the balance sheet. In order EMEE - FRERBRHR

to minimise the risk, management of the Group closely
monitors overdue debts. The recoverable amount

of each individual debt is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adequate allowance for doubtful

debts has been made for irrecoverable amounts. In

=EE %ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁk
SEAENEREE - /T
BERERR - AEEH
B BT BRI MR
A1 - RBILERN AT

this regard, the directors of the Company consider EIHBEREEER BE

that credit risk associated with the Group’s trade and B - B A AT E K

notes receivables, and other receivables is significantly RRIF R SE R ©

reduced. TS AEENES
RA - EREEEKE

SR IA R BRI AR

iR RIB R A EER
RE ARIER A °

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because the HREF I EaEETR

counterparties are banks with high credit-rating. E’Jfﬂﬁ UL IR TASBRAY
EERERTRK o

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC.

ARBIZEE D NEE
[R\f S = BRI o
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37. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

a)

b)

Financial risk management (Continued)

v) Liquidity risk management
The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes convertible bonds and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company. The gearing
ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

37.

B ER R EREE R
YNSZENE )
a) HMKRRERE®)

b)

v) mEMEBREE
REBAEENEH - $
ARKREES RFERE
MEBNER  FFEE
BY—E/ENRDES
BB B IR EIE - WEIRED
MRREEERKEE -
REEFE BRI
SREBRIRITEE - A
FEERARRERRS
mE - WRE K EER

BENZIHSEHEIAEE
//néb |¢$J—L|3“ °
EXEHE
AEENEZEEAREEBIERR
PEARSBISELENEE T - B

RRENEALE  AHEBR
B RBIREUS R -

REFEEREERRE - AL
ERENEE R EHEENRR
HEHERRBETHE - B
FAABEARE  AKEAA
EIRMNBERAORE - RARREE
BARYEITHR - NEBTRE
SNRE R E AN TE PR
BE_TTLF+_H=1—H
RZZFTXFt_A=t—B8L
FE - WEHER  BRIERF
RS - DEERFRREEK
F AT R R S AR R [ B ER 1S
FEH B B AR ST AR A1 25 B AR
2 R FE -

AEEEREERBLRETR
REMFEBERRARERINE R
B AEENBRREFEER
B ERB0% AT < FRERE
MRRITEFRRE MR EHE
Y - ERBREABRESRAR
BIRAF A ABERA o 14
B BEABLENT :
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37. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL 37. BEERREARAEERMAE
MANAGEMENT AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR NFE @)
VALUES (Continued)
b) Management of capital Continued) b) BEXEE#@)
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings i S R1TE 7K 14,406 77,768
Less: Cash and cash equivalents J& : 3 & RIS EED (468,483) (486,937)
Net debt FaE (454,077) (409,169)
Convertible bonds, ABkES - aEEHS

the liability component - 78,410
Equity attributable to equity RARIRAREE A

holders of the Company FE(GARAR 972,296 835,723
Total capital WA 972,296 914,133
Capital and net debt BARRFEE 518,219 504,964
Gearing ratio BEAMEBLX N/A 38 A N/ATE A

c) Estimation of fair values c) AV EME

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a FHIOR—FHeREERARE
maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate MEZESEHRELAEQTEE
their fair values. Ao
The fair value of balances with related parties has not been HARABEATEBRRNTERRS
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of these mEEEERENRRNEES
balances cannot be reasonably determined because of the EHETE MW EETZEEH

relationship. K AFME ©
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38. RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 38. i

REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Group has not adopted earlier or applied the following new and
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these standards or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

e RMBEREDS

SR  E E F T DI B AR B R AR AR
2R RIEFTEA K2 kE - AREES
B ERZEEANRBEASEZ
BN BARRLTERERTE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BT B AR SR EN

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009
BIRR &5t AE RIS 23 5% (A1ERT) EERA —TENF—A—H
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
B B S R R I 26 8 5% SR —TENF—-HA—H
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share 1 March 2007
BRIk E R Transactions —EE+F=A—H
ZEEEIH B B s e o R R 3 2 5% —
SEREFRNHRZS
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008
BB B e ke R =T e HE —ZTENF—-HA—H
ZEEF 125
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008
B B 7 S R RARPEEE —ZEEN\FLHA-H
ZEGF 135
IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit 1 January 2008
BIFR B T st a2 i Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements —ETNF—-A—H
ZEEFE14% and Their Interaction

BIFR & ERIZE 1958 — RERNEEMNR S -

REESEREMENEBRERE

39. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 39. RAEHIA
At 31 December 2007, the directors consider the ultimate controlling m:ggt¢—|—_ A=+—8 #%3R
party to be Mr. Fang Jin. BREEHALETELE -

40. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 40. BBREZEMEHRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 17 March 2008.

EXEER_ZET\F=A+LAEL
KR EE RGBT ]RE -
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IEMBERE

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under

International Financial Reporting Standards:

MG a M BERRSREARE 2 FAMTE
B ZEPBRRDBBERM GRS E

AlfRS

Year ended 31st December,

BEtZA=t-HLEE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EBtE —TTXF —TTHF —TIWF —TT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%TRT
RESULTS ¥
Turnover ] 960,921 936,305 706,992 515,839 422,036
Profit before taxation BRA AT Al 15,946 174,902 111,664 69,979 52,443
Taxation 18 (429) (14,711) (8,344) (4,761) -
Profit for the year NEE 5 A 15,517 160,191 103,320 65,218 52,443
Attributable to: AT ¢
Equity holders of the Company AR AIEZREA A 15,513 160,191 86,336 42,392 34,088
Minority interests DR 4 - 16,984 22,826 18,355
15,517 160,191 103,320 65,218 52,443
As at 31st December,
R+=A=+—H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—ETtHE TTENE —TTRE —TTME —TT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR®TT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 1,153,070 1,156,839 352,093 238,440 214,425
Total liabilities FS=E 180,774 (321,116) (149,889) (139,962) (128,228)
972,296 835,723 202,204 98,478 86,197
Equity attributable to: PATNIE B (G
Equity holders of the Company AR AlEzEA A 972,289 835,723 202,204 64,011 56,028
Minority interests DR 7 - - 34,467 30,169
972,296 835,723 202,204 98,478 86,197
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